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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Kwong Luen
Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (the “Year”).

LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

The ordinary shares of our Company (the “Shares”) were
successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11
March 2021 (the “Listing Date”) which marked a significant
milestone for our Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”). 250,000,000 ordinary Shares were issued under
the share offer, raising net proceeds of approximately HK$97.1
million (after deducting expenses from the Listing (the “Listing
Expenses”)).

OVERVIEW

With the capital raised from the Listing, the Group has greater
flexibility to enhance the service capacity which strengthen the
Group's market position in Hong Kong.

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$548.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
13.9% as compared to approximately HK$481.7 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “FY2020/21"). For the Year, the
Group recorded profit attributed to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$23.5 million as compared to profit recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2021 of approximately HK$31.1 million.
The decrease of the profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the Group's gross profit and the increase in the administrative
expenses.

Setting aside the Listing Expenses, the Group's net profit for the
FY2020/21 was approximately HK$45.4 million.
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PROSPECT

In view of the strong demand in the foundation works market,
property developers are more actively launching new projects. In
particular, there has been an increasing number of invitation to
tenders received by the Group from both current and potential
customers.

To expand the Group’s service capacity in capturing valuable
opportunities that arise from the Hong Kong foundation works
industry in the future, we plan to utilise the net proceeds in (i)
financing the up-front costs of projects; (ii) purchasing additional
machinery; (iii) further expanding and strengthening manpower by
recruiting additional staff; and (iv) purchasing a building information
modelling software together with certain ancillary supporting
hardware device.

Based on the Group's accumulated expertise and experiences in the
industry, the Directors are cautiously optimistic about the Group’s
business outlook.

The Board believes that the Listing has enhanced the Group’s image
in the construction industry in Hong Kong, while is critical to the
relationship building with our current and potential customers. With
our active business strategy in the coming year, the Group expects
to create greater value to our shareholders and investors.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, let me take this opportunity to extend our
heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, business partners, customers,
and employees for your continuous support and contribution to the
Group. We are committed to delivering value and bringing returns
to all our stakeholders.

Yip Kwong Cheung
Chairman
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Kwong Cheung (EE#) ("Mr. Yip”), aged 65, is our Chairman,
chief executive officer and executive Director. Mr. Yip serves as
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”).
Mr. Yip is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operation,
managing the project management team and formulating the
overall business development strategies of our Group.

Mr. Yip is a founder of our Group. Mr. Yip attended junior secondary
education in Hong Kong. He has accumulated about 31 years of
experience in the foundation industry and construction project
management. In August 1990, he commenced his own business
through a sole proprietorship under the name of Kwong Luen Co.
established by himself which mainly engaged in construction works
in Hong Kong. He has been a director of Kwong Luen Engineering
Limited (“Kwong Luen Engineering”) since June 1995. He is also
a director of both Kwong Luen Prosperity Limited (“Kwong Luen
Prosperity”) and Kwong Luen Success Limited (“Kwong Luen
Success”). Mr. Yip is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Chui Ling.

Mr. Yip has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 11 March 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with
the terms of the agreement. The amount of emoluments paid
for the Year to Mr. Yip is set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Year of the Company’s annual report.
Such remuneration/emoluments will be reviewed annually by the
Board and the Remuneration Committee and he is also entitled to
a discretionary bonus with reference to his performance and the
operating results of the Group.

Mr. Yip has not held any directorship in the last three years in public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market
in Hong Kong or overseas. As at 31 March 2022, he was interested
in 750,000,000 Shares held through Kwong Luen Prosperity
(representing 75% of the aggregate number of Shares in issue). Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Yip was not interested in any Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO") as at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip
does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. KWAN Chui Ling (B82£1%) (“Ms. Kwan"), aged 64, is our executive
Director. Ms. Kwan is primarily responsible for overseeing the
human resources and administration affairs of our Group. Ms.
Kwan attended secondary education in Hong Kong. Ms. Kwan
has accumulated about 21 years of experience in the foundation
industry. She has been a director of Kwong Luen Engineering since
June 2000. She is also a director of both Kwong Luen Prosperity and
Kwong Luen Success. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Yip.

Ms. Kwan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 11 March 2021 and
will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with the terms
of the agreement. The amount of emoluments paid for the Year to Ms.
Kwan is set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
for the Year of the Company’s annual report. Such remuneration/
emoluments will be reviewed annually by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee and she is also entitled to a discretionary
bonus with reference to her performance and the operating results of
the Group.

Ms. Kwan has not held any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas. As at 31 March 2022, she
was interested in 750,000,000 Shares held through Kwong Luen
Prosperity (representing 75% of the aggregate number of Shares
in issue). Save as disclosed above, Ms. Kwan was not interested
in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
March 2022. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Kwan does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. CHENG Shing Yan (Zf7fiX) (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 47, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February
2021. Ms. Cheng serves as the chairlady of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. She
is responsible for overseeing our management independently and
providing independent advice to the Board.

Ms. Cheng has accumulated about 23 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. She held different
positions at various auditing or CPA firms from 2004 to 2016. Ms.
Cheng joined the group of Sanroc International Holdings Limited
(now known as Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited) (“Sanroc”),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1660), as the chief financial officer from April 2016 to April
2018 and as the chief financial officer of certain subsidiaries of
Sanroc since April 2018.

From August 2016 to April 2018 and from April 2017 to April
2018, she was the company secretary and an executive director
of Sanroc, respectively. From June 2017 to October 2019, she
was an independent non-executive director of China Shenghai
Food Holdings Company Limited (now known as China Shenghai
Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1676). Since October 2017, she has been an
independent non-executive director of Putian Communication Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1720).

Ms. Cheng obtained a master’'s degree of arts in international
accounting from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2003. She was admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July 2003, a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in December
2005, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (now known as The Chartered Governance Institute)
in June 2017 and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries in June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Cheng has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. She is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGNREEE

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit Ernest ( & 2 £ ) (“Mr. Wong"”), aged 54,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
19 February 2021. Mr. Wong serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
He is responsible for overseeing our management independently and
providing independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Wong has accumulated over 20 years of extensive experience
in venture capital, corporate finance and management. He is
currently the president and the group chief financial officer of KVB
Holdings Limited. He was an executive director of Adamas Finance
Asia Limited (formerly known as China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited) (“Adamas Finance”), a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange (stock code: ADAM) and the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1CP1), from May 2008 to February 2014 and
a non-executive director of Adamas Finance from February 2014
to June 2019. From October 2014 to August 2019, he worked for
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (now known as CLSA Premium
Limited) (“Kunlun Financial”), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6877), as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary. During the period from May
2018 to August 2019, he was concurrently an executive director
of Kunlun Financial. Before that, he worked at Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company Limited as the
chief financial officer, and previously he was the vice president of
Vertex Management (HK), an international venture capital firm in
Singapore.

From February 2017 to August 2019, he was an independent non-
executive director of China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8158). From July 2014 to July 2020, he was an independent
non-executive director of HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(now known as China Wood International Holding Co., Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1822). From October 2011 to June 2022, he was an
independent non-executive director of RENHENG Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3628).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

He is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1581),
Aidigong Maternal & Child Health Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 286), Goldstone
Investment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 901) and Samson Paper Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 731).

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree of business administration
from the University of Hong Kong, a master’s degree of science
in investment management from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, a master’s degree of science in electronic
engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
master’s degree of science in major programme management from
the University of Oxford in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong was admitted as a chartered financial analyst of The
Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts, a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGNREEE

Mr. TANG Sher Kin (B8#LER) (“Mr. Tang”), aged 52, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2021.
Mr. Tang serves as a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He is responsible for overseeing our
management independently and providing independent advice to
the Board.

Mr. Tang has accumulated about 27 years of experience in
engineering industry and project management. From May 1994 to
June 1997, he worked as a senior sales engineer at Temperzone
Limited. From June 1997 to December 2018, he worked as a senior
manager at The Jardine Engineering Corporation, Limited. Since
January 2019, he has been an executive director and the general
manager of Luen Fat Air Condition (Holding) Trading & Engineering
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in mechanical
engineering from the Oxford Polytechnic (now known as the Oxford
Brookes University) in the United Kingdom in July 1992 and a
master’s degree of arts in global business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 2006.

Mr. Tang was admitted as a chartered engineer of the Engineering
Council in December 2004, a fellow of the Asian Institute of
Intelligent Buildings in July 2005, a BEAM professional of the Hong
Kong Green Building Council in 2010, a chartered environmentalist
of the Society of Operations Engineers in August 2011, a registered
energy assessor of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
of the Government in August 2012, a certified member of The
Environmental Management Association of Hong Kong in January
2017 and a professional member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Qualified Environmental Professionals Limited in July 2017. Mr. Tang
is currently a fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in five
disciplines including (i) building services; (ii) control, automation and
instrumentation; (iii) environmental; (iv) energy; and (v) mechanical.
Mr. Tang has been a member of the Innovation and Technology
Fund Research Projects Assessment Panel for two years with effect
from 1 January 2021.

Mr. Tang has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of ALCO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0328), since June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tang has not held any directorship in
the last three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not
connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

Mr. KWOK Yiu Hung (EB#3#) (“Mr. Kwok"”), aged 57, joined our
Group in August 1997 as an excavator operator of Kwong Luen
Engineering. He was promoted as a site agent of Kwong Luen
Engineering in March 2000 and was further promoted as a site
manager of Kwong Luen Engineering in September 2015. He
has accumulated about 38 years of practical experience in the
foundation industry. Mr. Kwok is primarily responsible for our site
coordination, site supervision and project management.

Mr. Kwok completed four courses for qualifying site supervisors
as technically competent persons organised by the Construction
Industry Training Authority in Hong Kong from 2002 to 2005.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwok has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. WONG Ho Cheung (E3#) (“Mr. Wong Ho Cheung”), aged
34, joined our Group in December 2019 as a financial controller of
Kwong Luen Engineering. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
our financial reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control
and company secretarial matters.

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung has accumulated about 10 years of
experience in auditing and financial matters. Prior to joining our
Group, from October 2011 to September 2012, Mr. Wong Ho
Cheung served as an audit trainee at Pentagon CPA Limited. From
October 2012 to January 2016, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung held various
positions at Mazars CPA Limited, where he last served as a senior
(grade Il). From February 2016 to January 2018, Mr. Wong Ho
Cheung served as a senior at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. From
June 2018 to October 2019, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung served as an
accounting manager at Kit Kee Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of
Dragon Rise Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 6829), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree of business
administration (accounting) from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in November 2011. He was admitted as a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
October 2018.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung has not held
any directorship in the last three years in public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas. He is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W&

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a foundation works contractor in Hong Kong. We
commenced our business in 1995 and have since undertaken
foundation works in the role of subcontractor through Kwong Luen
Engineering, our principal operating subsidiary. The foundation
works undertaken by us mainly comprised excavation and lateral
support works and other associated works including pile cap
construction, underground drainage works and site formation
works.

For the Year, the Group recorded profit of approximately HK$23.5
million. Compared with the FY2020/21, the Group recorded profit
of approximately HK$31.1 million. The Directors are of the view
that the decrease of profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the Group’s gross profit and the increase in the administrative
expenses. Setting aside the Listing Expenses, the Group’s profit for
the FY2020/21 was approximately HK$45.4 million.

OUTLOOK

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date by way of share offer (the “Share Offer"”).
The Group always strives to improve our operation efficiency and
profitability of our business. The Group will also proactively seek
opportunities to expand our customer base and our market share
and undertake more projects which will enhance value to our
shareholders.

The net proceeds from the Share Offer will provide financial
resources to the Group to meet and achieve our business objectives
and strategies which will further strengthen the Group’s market
position in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERERT MR

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue increased to approximately HK$548.8 million
for the Year by approximately HK$67.1 million or 13.9%, from
approximately HK$481.7 million for the FY2020/21. This was
principally due to the revenue contributed by two sizable projects
awarded during the FY2020/21. The estimated contract sum of
these two projects were approximately HK$328.5 million and
HK$121.3 million, respectively. One of these projects commenced
in August 2020 whereas another commenced in March 2021 with
revenue contribution of approximately HK$215.2 million (FY2020/21:
HK$64.1 million) and HK$109.9 million (FY2020/21: HK$10.5
million), respectively, for the Year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's cost of sales increased from approximately HK$420.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$502.7 million for the Year, representing an increase of
approximately HK$81.8 million or 19.4%.

The Group’s overall gross profit decreased from approximately
HK$60.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$46.2 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 24.1%. Such decrease in our Group’s overall gross
profit was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in cost of sales as
a result of increase in price of the raw materials; and (i) delays in
project schedule due to the fifth wave of outbreak of COVID-19
attributable to the SARS-CoV-2 Omicron variant since January 2022.
As a result, the Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased from
12.6% for the year ended 31 March 2021 to 8.4% for the Year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$3.1 million from approximately HK$4.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 to approximately HK$1.5 million for the
Year. The decrease was mainly due to (i) no government grants
received from the Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong
Government for the purpose to retain employment and combat
the COVID-19 during the Year (FY2020/21: approximately HK$1.5
million); (ii) no gain on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment during the Year (FY2020/21: approximately HK$1.2
million); and (iii) no rental income from leasing of machinery during
the Year (FY2020/21: approximately HK$313,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group increased from
approximately HK$7.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2021
to approximately HK$11.4 million for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately HK$3.9 million or approximately 51.7%.
The increase during the Year was mainly due to (i) the increase in the
professional and consultancy fee to approximately HK$1.8 million
during the Year (FY2020/21: approximately HK$1.4 million); (i) the
increase in the depreciation expense to approximately HK$1.5 million
during the Year (FY2020/21: approximately HK$0.4 million); (iii)
the increase in the directors’ fees to the independent non-executive
directors to HK$432,000 during the Year (FY2020/21: HK$36,000);
and (iv) the loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$2.0 million during the Year (FY2020/21: Nil).

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased from approximately
HK$289,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$541,000 for the Year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$252,000 or 87.2%. The increase in our finance costs was
primarily attributable to the increase in drawdown of bank loans
from approximately HK$38.2 million during the FY2020/21 to
approximately HK$60.5 million during the Year.

Listing expenses

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised non-
recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$14.3 million in
connection with the Listing.

No such expense was recognised during the Year.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$8.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$4.7 million for the Year, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$4.2 million or 46.6%. The decrease was due
to the decrease in the Group’s gross profit as discussed above, while
the effective tax rate of the Group decreased from approximately
22.2% for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately 16.8%
for the Year mainly due to the non-deductible listing expenses of
approximately HK$14.3 million incurred during the year ended 31
March 2021 as discussed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERERT MR

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

The profit and total comprehensive income for the year of the Group
decreased from approximately HK$31.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2021 to approximately HK$23.5 million for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.6 million or 24.5%.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in the
Group's gross profit and the increase in the administrative expenses
as discussed above.

FREMNREHEKHBE
AEBEFRHEMNEEANSEEBEHEBEE T —
FZA=T-HLEFENLNNBEETRIE
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24.5% ° WA EBEBHRIN LR - ANEEEF)
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Key financial ratio FEHELER
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-ZB-—F RZZTZ—F
=ZA=+-8 =A=+—8
Current ratio mEh L 4.7 timesfZ 4.8 timesf&
Gearing ratio BEAGHEE 9.6% 8.2%
Return on total assets 1B ERRE 7.6% 11.0%
Return on equity T 7 [0 7 = 9.5% 13.9%
Net profit margin AR 43% 6.5%
Current Ratio REE=E
Current ratio is calculated as current assets divided by current  JtEILLEZZmE A AN RBIEERURBI ARG
liabilities as at the respective reporting dates. ETE

The current ratio of the Group has remained relatively stable at
approximately 4.7 times and 4.8 times as at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021 respectively.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings (including interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities) divided by
the total equity as at the respective reporting dates.

The gearing ratio of the Group increased to approximately 9.6% as
at 31 March 2022 from approximately 8.2% as at 31 March 2021.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Return on total assets

Return on total assets is calculated as profit and total comprehensive
income for the year divided by the ending total assets as at the
respective reporting dates.

Our return on total assets decreased to approximately 7.6% for the
Year from approximately 11.0% for the year ended 31 March 2021.
The decrease was mainly due to increase in property, plant and
equipment.

Return on equity

Return on equity is calculated as profit and total comprehensive
income for the year divided by the ending total equity as at the
respective reporting dates.

Our return on equity decreased to approximately 9.5% for the Year
from approximately 13.9% for the year ended 31 March 2021.
The decrease was mainly due to increase in property, plant and
equipment.

Net profit margin

Our net profit margin decreased to approximately 4.3% for the Year
from approximately 6.5% for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s gross profit
and the increase in the administrative expenses as discussed above.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks
and uncertainties. The following are the key risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group:

Industry risks

We have focused on providing foundation works services in the
role of subcontractor during the Year. The future development of
the foundation industry and the availability of foundation projects
in Hong Kong depend largely on the continued development of
the property market in Hong Kong. The nature, extent and timing
of available foundation projects will be determined by an interplay
of a variety of factors, including the Government’s policies on the
property market in Hong Kong, its land supply and public housing
policy, the investment of property developers and the general
conditions and prospects of Hong Kong'’s economy. These factors
may affect the availability of foundation projects in Hong Kong. If
there is any slowdown (in terms of transaction volume and price) of
the property market in Hong Kong, there is no assurance that the
availability of foundation projects in Hong Kong would not decrease
significantly and our Group's business and financial position and
prospect may be adversely and materially affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERERT MR

Compliance risks

Many aspects of our business operation are governed by various
laws and regulations and Government policies. There is no assurance
that we will be able to respond to any such changes in a timely
manner. Such changes may also increase our costs and burden in
complying with them, which may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operation. If there are any
changes to and/or imposition of the requirements for qualification
in the foundation industry in relation to environmental protection
and labour safety, and we fail to meet the new requirements in a
timely manner or at all, our business operation will be materially and
adversely affected.

Uncertainties in construction progress

Foundation works expose us to the risk of unexpected geological
or sub-soil conditions. Prior to commencement of our foundation
works, our customers would normally provide us with ground
investigation reports. However, information contained in these
reports may not be sufficient to reveal the actual geology
beneath the construction site due to limitation in the scope of the
underground investigation works that can be carried out at the
site and/or other technical limitations. There may be discrepancies
between the actual geological conditions and the findings set out
in these investigation reports, and the investigation may not be
able to reveal the existence of rocks or to identify any antiquities,
monuments or structures beneath the site. All these may eventually
present potential issues and uncertainties in the carrying out of our
foundation works, such as the possible increase in the complexity
of the project resulting from additional work procedures, workers,
equipment and time required to deal with any unexpected existence
of rocks, antiquities or monuments, which may also lead to
additional costs to be incurred. Pricing of our services is determined
on a case-by-case basis having regard to various factors, which
include our assessment of the complexity of the project having
regard to all relevant information available to us, including the
information contained in the ground investigation reports provided
by our customers. In case of any significant unexpected difficult
geological or sub-soil conditions, our Group may incur additional
costs in dealing with such unforeseen conditions, which may lead
to cost overruns and may thus materially and adversely affect our
business operation and financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Failure to guarantee new business

A significant portion of our revenue was derived from a limited
number of customers during the Year. We were engaged by our
customers on a project-by-project basis during the Year. There is
no assurance that we will continue to obtain contracts from our
major customers in the future and there is no assurance that we
will be able to secure projects with gross profit margin comparable
to those projects awarded to us by our current customers. If there
is a significant decrease in the number of projects awarded by our
major customers, and we are unable to secure suitable projects of
a comparable size, quantity or gross profit margin as replacements
from other customers, our financial condition and operating results
would be materially and adversely affected.

Nevertheless, the Group considers that a public listing status enable
us to enjoy several competitive advantages, such as transparent
financial disclosures, enhanced internal control and corporate
governance practices. Our Directors believe the customers would
give weight to these competitive edges when they select and engage
subcontractors for foundation services.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and the management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND SUB-CONTRACTORS
Employees

As at 31 March 2022, including two executive Directors but
excluding three independent non-executive Directors, the Group had
a total of 123 employees (31 March 2021: 133).

We recognise employees as valuable assets and our success is
underpinned by our people. In line with our human resource policies,
we are committed to providing attractive remuneration packages,
and a fair and harmonious working environment to safeguard the
legitimate rights and interests of our employees. The Group regularly
reviews our human resource policies which outline the Group’s
compensation, working hours, rest periods and other benefits
and welfare, to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. We
always place emphasis on attracting qualified applicants by offering
competitive remuneration packages. These packages are reviewed
based on employees’ performance and reference to prevailing
market conditions, and are adjusted in a timely manner to keep
them in line with market benchmarking.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERERT MR

In addition, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2021 so as
to motivate, attract and retain the right employees.

Customers

The Group are aware of the risk of customer concentration, and
sought to reduce the reliance on major customer by making
consistent effort in expanding and diversifying our customer base.
We also intend to strengthen our relationships with main contractors
which are group member of major private property developers.

Besides that, the Group believes a strong and good relationship
with customers would increase its recognition and visibility in the
foundation industry. As such, the Group values the views and
opinions of all customers through various means and channels,
including regular review and analysis on customer feedback.

Suppliers and sub-contractors

The Group has developed stable and strong working relationships
with suppliers and sub-contractors to meet the Group’s customers’
needs in an effective and efficient manner. The Group works closely
with the suppliers and sub-contractors to make sure the tendering,
procurement and sub-contracting are conducted in an open, fair and
just manner. The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to them before the commencement of the project.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s issued capital was HK$10.0
million and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
1,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.01 each.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total cash and cash equivalents

of approximately HK$42.6 million (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$107.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit
risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, a life insurance policy with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$4,497,000 (FY2020/21: HK$4,350,000) was
pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group only operates in Hong Kong and all of the revenue
and transactions arising from its operations were settled in Hong
Kong dollars, the Directors are of the view that the Group’s foreign
exchange rate risks are insignificant. Thus, the Group has not
entered into any derivative contracts to hedge against the foreign
exchange rate risk for the Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had the following capital
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBWmR DT

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has a contingent liability in relation
to a fatal accident (the “Accident”) occurred at a worksite, whereby
a subcontractor’s worker allegedly sustained fatal injury during the
course of work. In October 2021, five summonses (the “Summons”)
were issued against Kwong Luen Engineering Limited in relation to
the Accident on various offences under the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance. Based on the current status of the legal
proceedings for the Summons and independent legal advice
obtained, the management of the Group considered it is premature
to conclude on whether the Group is probable to be liable for
offences alleged in the Summons, and therefore a contingent
liability exists.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies by the Group during the Year. Save for the
business plan as disclosed in the Prospectus, there was no plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 26
February 2021 (the “Prospectus”) and this annual report, the
Group did not have any other plans for material investments or
capital assets during the Year.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Up to 31 March 2022, we utilised the net proceeds raised from
the Listing in accordance with the designated uses set out in
the section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” to the
Prospectus. Such uses include: (i) financing the up-front costs of
projects; (ii) purchasing additional machinery; (iii) further expanding

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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and strengthening manpower by recruiting additional staff; and (iv)
purchasing a building information modelling software together with
certain ancillary supporting hardware device. Details of the use of
proceeds are listed as below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERERT MR

Due to the outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19 attributable
to the SARS-CoV-2 Omicron variant since January 2022, the
Group encountered difficulty in hiring construction workers and
experienced temporary labour shortage. The utilisation of proceeds
for expanding and strengthening manpower by recruiting additional
staff was therefore postponed temporarily. The Directors confirmed
that the utilisation of proceeds has been resumed and estimated
that the remaining proceeds will be fully utilised by 31 March 2023.

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting related expenses,
were approximately HK$97.1 million. After the Listing, a part of
these proceeds has been applied in accordance with the future
plans and use of proceeds as set out in the Prospectus. As at 31
March 2022 and the date of this annual report, the unutilised
proceeds were placed in interest-bearing deposits with authorised
financial institutions or licensed banks in Hong Kong. The Directors
regularly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may change
or modify plans against the changing market condition to ascertain
the business growth of the Group. During the Year, the Directors
considered that no modification of the use of proceeds described in
the Prospectus was required.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, we employed a total of 123 employees
(including two executive Directors but excluding three independent
non-executive Directors), as compared to a total of 133 employees
as at 31 March 2021. The remuneration packages that the Group
offers to employees includes salaries, allowances, discretionary
bonuses, and/or other benefits in kind. In general, the Group
determines employees’ salaries based on their qualifications, position
and seniority. The Group also adopted a Share Option Scheme
whereby qualified participants may be granted options to acquire
shares in the Company. The total staff cost incurred by the Group
for the Year was approximately HK$55.5 million compared to
approximately HK$55.1 million for FY2020/21.

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Board upon
the recommendation from the remuneration committee of the
Company having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

MR EZE = 9 — A#IE T A SARS-CoV-2
OmicronZBE5| M AR COVID-19 » REETE
BIEHET A EEEREE - WHIRERSE) N
KRR - At - EERHESMESIIERRNRBR
EEZETHE—PREARIMERMOAS - TS
R - FISRIECREMEA - BRI TSR
BR-E-=F=A=+—HiEEIPA -

BB IR - LTS SRS A /971
BEET - RLEME  BOMBFADRERE
RFEHARRE B RSB ZEA - R=F
ZCHFZAZTHRAFERERY - APA
FISRIAEREER A BB ERITER
AHRER  EREEHRMEAEENEGEER X
Al BEAR IR NEN 2L VT GO B B 2T S
NHEEAEBNRBIER - NAFE  EFAR
BRERARERMANAETERE

B & X H Bk
W-E-—F=ZA=+—08 KMEASE£123
ZRE(BEMENITES BB RE=ZR28B
FNTEE) M_T-_—F=A=1+—HAA
AH133BEE - AEEMEBIREOFIEE
BEEHFS 2 BBETAR RELEYE
o —MmMs  AEBIZER BUMFEET
BEFH S - REBINRWBREE - Bt A
B2 EE R EEERE  LUEBARARRND -
NEBMPNARNEEELNAE TRALA55588
B M-TE/ ——FFR AL 1B EE
T o

EXeFMRESEREALAFMHEEGNRE
FRTE  BPCERAKRENEERSE AAKR
BN A B LB m S g BUR o

2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the declaration of final
dividend for the Year (year ended 31 March 2021: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As a part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

There have been no other material events occurring after 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIZ - HERERHRE

INTRODUCTION
Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (“KLEH", “the Group”,

" "o

we"”, “us”, or “our”), being a foundation works contractor in
Hong Kong commenced its business since 1995 and has undertaken
foundation works in the role of subcontractor through Kwong
Luen Engineering Limited, its principal operating subsidiary. The
foundation works undertaken by the Group mainly comprised
excavation and lateral support (“ELS"”) and other associated works
including pile cap construction, underground drainage works and
site formation works. The foundation works services are widely
required in residential and non-residential developments such as
commercial and infrastructure developments. In particular, the
Group has established a solid track record in undertaking foundation
works mainly in residential developments initiated by private
property developers in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, the Group remains
open to undertaking projects from different sectors and types of
development.

The Group incorporates environmental, social and governance
("ESG") approaches into its daily management to achieve the
optimum balance on its economic performance, environmental
protection, social responsibility, and stakeholder satisfaction.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is fully committed to
formulating and implementing ESG strategies. Its ESG performance is
supervised by the Board members. Relevant risks and opportunities
have been embedded into the Group's strategic goals, which are also
closely aligned with the overall mission and vision on sustainability.
While developing the Group's goals, we firmly adhered to principles
of good corporate governance and had carefully considered our
activities” influences on the environment and the Hong Kong society.
Corporate social responsibilities were also integrated into the
Group's business strategy and management approach.

The Group is delighted to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report ("ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March
2022 ("Reporting Period”) in the following to illustrate and
highlight our efforts and performance in achieving sustainable
development in both the environment and social aspects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("ESG Reporting Guide"”), with the aim to inform relevant parties
and stakeholders of our policies, measures and performance
regarding environmental, social and governance issues. To ensure a
comprehensive ESG reporting, we would continuously take note of
different ESG issues and assess their relevance to our ESG reporting.

The Group attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency during the preparation of the ESG
Report. The Group has applied these reporting principles in the
aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as the following:

e Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting
the confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation
of the EGS Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and the ESG Management Team.
Please refer to the section headed “Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

e Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in
calculation of relevant data in the ESG Report, as well as
the applicable assumptions were disclosed. The KPIs were
supplemented by explanatory notes to establish benchmarks
where feasible.

e  Balance: The EGS Report was prepared based on an objective
and impartial manner to ensure that the information disclosed
faithfully reflects the overall ESG performance of the Group.

e  Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to this ESG
Report were substantially consistent with the previous year, and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies. If there are
any changes that may affect comparison with previous reports,
the Group will add comments to the corresponding content of
this ESG Report.

The scope of this ESG Report includes KLEH and its principal
operating subsidiaries. ESG Report has undergone the internal
review process of the Group and was approved by the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HEREGHRS

We place emphasis on providing consistently high quality services.
As such, we have adopted and implemented a quality control
system that complies with international standards. The quality
control system of the Group for the foundation works is accredited
by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency with the standards of the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO") 9001:2015.
We have also set up an occupational health and safety system
to promote safe working practice among all employees and to
prevent the occurrence of accidents through safety inspections. Our
health and safety management system has been certified to be in
conformance with OHSAS 18001:2007. Further, we have also set up
an environmental management system to promote environmental
awareness and to prevent pollution of the environment resulting
from projects undertaken by us, and our environmental
management system has been certified to satisfy the requirements
of ISO 14001:2015.

The Group believes that our stringent quality control system
and strong commitment to environmental management and
occupational health and safety management will allow us to be
better positioned to deliver quality works on time and within budget,
thereby strengthening our position as a foundation works contractor
in Hong Kong.

We pay due regards to compliance with laws and regulations that
is relevant to the Group. At the same time, to uphold our corporate
socially responsibilities, we care for our community members by
actively participate in public welfare or charity events.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to complying with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. It adopts effective systems
and policies as set out below to achieve resource efficiency, energy
saving, and waste reduction. The Group strictly complies with
applicable laws and regulations concerning environmental protection
and pollution control, including, but not limited to: Noise Control
Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal
Ordinance, Air Pollution Control Ordinance, and Public Health and
Municipal Services Ordinance.

e  Environmental Management System: Our environmental
management system sets out our commitment to controlling
and maintaining a high standard of environmental protection.
Our goal is to support environmental protection and to prevent
pollution in balance with socio-economic needs as well as to
address the needs of a broad range of interested parties.

e Waste Management Policy: Our waste management policy
sets out our commitment in reducing our impact on the
environment by managing waste efficiently and sustainably.
During the Reporting Period, the Group also engaged proper
suppliers for arrangement of waste disposal in a professional
manner.

e Environmental-related Management Systems: Our
environmental management system has been independently
certified against ISO 14001:2015.

No material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
had been identified during the Reporting Period.
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A1. Emissions
Al.1: Air Emissions

Dust is generated from construction activities and material
transportation. We introduce mitigation measures to
control dust generated from projects and dark smoke
from equipment or vehicles, for example, washing vehicles
before leaving the construction site, spraying water or
dust suppression chemicals in construction sites, strictly
prohibiting open burning of wastes and other refuse on
sites, etc. We perform proper and scheduled maintenance
for the equipment or vehicles to ensure no excessive dark
smoke emission.

A1, BERD
ALl EESAHEIL

LR R HERSELNE - R
PIERER AR AR FE B SR IE IR B EE AV
ERREBRERELNRE - MEEF
FRETHAS E > ERETIHE
BKSHMECER  BREETHERX
WeERERY) R AR - FPIHRE
HEMETTEE N E R E - URER
TEHIAZNRIE -

A12: Greenhouse Gas (“GHG ") Emissions A2 BERE ([ BERE|)HK

GHG emissions from the Group is generated mainly from REBERBRERBEREZERE E
the consumption of mobile fuel (i.e. gasoline for the AR (BN 80 R 32 B (52 A a0 /0m ) B FE
vehicles and equipment). The vehicles and equipment - ERARHNERERERRAE
consuming fuel are used for daily business operations. XGEE o MBREEERALY
Their combustion generates several air emissions including wmaty —S BRI RABERE
Nitrogen Oxides, Sulphur Oxides, Carbon Dioxide, and KLY HETE R R R ©
Respiratory Suspended Particles.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has set target to REERRE - AEBEUREHHA
reduce 5% of GHG emissions over the next 5 years, using EEF - HITE AR RSF R = & BB
the Reporting Period as the baseline year. The following 5% B1E o TX 254 EE RS
presents the Group’s GHG emissions for the Reporting MR ZE RSN
Period:
GHG emissions from use of vehicles and EHERR R REREHFK
equipment
Aspects 1.2 Unit 2022 2021
fEm1.2 B —B-CF —F-—F
Nitrogen Oxides (NO ) kg 75.0 89.4
REULPI(NO,) T
Sulphur Oxides (SO kg 0.7 1.1
e L#(s0) T
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg 4,305 5,707
Z&UYLHx(COo,) T
Respiratory Suspended Particles kg 3.5 4.2
BRSNS =k Fr
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Hazardous Waste

To the best of our knowledge, the Group was not aware
of any significant amount of hazardous wastes generated
in our projects and offices due to our business nature.
Thus, no data was recorded, and no policy has been
formulated.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group acknowledges possible environmental impacts
of non-hazardous waste generated during its operations
such as site clearance, excavation works, and construction
works. During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with the Waste Disposal Ordinance and had 9 projects
that disposed of soil (FY2021: 21 projects). The following
presents the relevant information:

Al3.

A4

R - HEREGHRS

BEEZERY

BEIAIFA - HRIEFIREHLEE -
AEBES FNHNERMAOEE RFAE
EEEAAEAZTEEY - Bt - X
EECIRAREE - TMESIEARRRECR o

EEZERY

REBFARELE R (iGH)EIE
PRIENRZETR)HPELENES
BEEY A REHIRIBIEK T E - RRE
B - NEBETCEEE GO
BEEEB (ZZF=—84F : 21{&EE)
EITTHERSE - TX25HEEER

Non-hazardous waste in total and intensity BEERYBREREE

Aspects 1.4 Unit 2022 2021
[EE1.4 B t St -2 —T-—F
Construction disposal: Soil tonnes 801,934 913,422
REREY T U

Construction disposal intensity tonnes per construction 89,104 43,496

project
EEREMEE oy gsalileEary=

Going forward, the Group will continue refining its wastes
reduction measures and disclose relevant results where
appropriate. The Group will seek continuous improvement
in waste management performance by setting appropriate
goals and objectives throughout the organisation.
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Measures to Mitigate Emissions

To reduce emissions from vehicles, employees are
encouraged to take public transports. The Group plans
schedule and arranges the route of its vehicles to avoid
unnecessary travel and/or congestion. To reduce its
emissions relating to business travel, the Group avoids
non-essential business travel and encourages employees
to take low-emissions travelling methods. Equipment or
vehicle which generates excessive dark smoke shall be
prohibited from use and be repaired immediately. Engines
of idle machines shall be switched off to prevent exhaust
air emission. We conduct regular monitoring during the
construction period for required projects.

Wastes Reduction and Initiatives

The Group is committed to reducing its impact on the
environment by managing its waste in an efficient and
sustainable manner. Each member of the Group, as well as
subcontractors, should take reasonable steps to avoid the
generation of waste by well planning of the works. The
mitigating measures include but not limited to: avoidance
of generation of waste and materials, consideration of
passing on waste materials and equipment to others
before disposal, segregation waste for recycling for the
reduction of waste onsite, and disposal of waste to
comply with statutory and regulatory requirements.

A2. Use of Resources
A1

Energy Consumption

The following presents the Group’s direct energy
consumption for the Reporting Period:

Direct Energy Consumption in total and
intensity

Al5 . RBERE

Al6:

A2.1

AR EWPR - RPIEEEB R
DNHERE - NREERBFERL ZH
HE@RG  NBRTUENHTT
K/ SR - BB EEBHITER
BVEEIR - NSRBI R N B Z MR H
TEhBEREREEREERNLITS
X FEIEREEBLRENRBHL
B WERZHEEEMERENE
W o AR B A M 2R S B AR LR
PR - HMERTHEEMFER
HETTE HAESA

ER i
AEBHNONUABREAFENT A
EEBERY  WREEHRENY
2 - AEBMEBHEKERFNUEDSE
BEFRINAERR  BBZERET
R RELERY - ERIERERE
BRARNERELEZRY LM - Z
BHEEANERY LR EEGEEM
7 BEEM DB RIMIAR RS RE
BY UWRERREELEEERRE
FEEY) o

A2. ERER
. BEJREFE

TX2HAEERRE HEANEZE
TRBRE

EERFREEBREE

Aspects 2.1 Unit 2022 2021
fEmE2.1 B —E-CF —E—F
Electricity Usage kWh 11,634 9,058
HE T ELR

Electricity Usage Intensity kWh/office 11,634 9,058
AEEE FRE WAE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has set target to
reduce 5% of energy consumption over the next 5 years,
using the Reporting Period as the baseline year.

RMEHF  AEBEEUAREHHEA
EEF - HIE AR RSFREFRHFER D
5%HB1Z o
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A2.2: Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives
The Group believes that reducing energy use could be
mutually beneficial to the environment and the Group by
reducing the operating costs and creating long-term value
to its stakeholders. The Group encourages employees to
switch off electrical appliances whenever not in use and
all unnecessary lighting, air conditioners, and electrical
appliances before they leave the office.
A2.3: Water Consumption and Packaging Material
Owing to the nature of our operations, other than the
consumption of drinking water, the use of water is not
significant under our operations control. There is also an
absence of packing materials involved in our operations.
As such, the Group has not placed emphasis on the
development of policies in these areas.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not
come at the expense of the environment. By integrating
environmental consideration into our business strategies, we
aim to be an environmentally sustainable enterprise. In the
coming years, we would continue promoting GHG emission
reduction, energy and water resource conservation and
efficient use of natural resources. We believe that not only can
raising environmental awareness and reinforcing the positive
behavioral changes bring benefits to our financial situation, but
also to the future generations.

Climate Change

The Group recognises the importance of the identification and
mitigation of significant climate-related matters; therefore, the
Group is committed to managing the potential climate-related
risks which may impact the Group’s business activities. The
Group has established risk management policy in identifying
and mitigating different risks including climate-related risks.
The Board meets regularly and cooperates closely with key
management to identify and evaluate climate-related risks and
to formulate strategies to manage the identified risks.

A3.

RIR - HERERHRS
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Through the above method, the Group identified the material
impacts on the Group's business arising from the following
risks:

Climate-related matters

Physical Risks:

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather such
as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can disrupt the Group's
operations by damaging the power grid and communication
infrastructures, and injuring its employees during their work,
leading to reduced capacity and decreased in productivity, or
expose the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential risks
and hazards, the Group has flexible working arrangements
and precautionary measures during bad or extreme weather
conditions.

Transition Risks:

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent climate
legislations and regulations to support the global vision of
carbon neutrality. From a listed company’s perspective, we
acknowledge the increasing requirements of climate-related
information disclosures. One example is the update of the
ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant climate-related
impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter environmental laws
and regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of
claims and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline
due to failure to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. The related capital investment and compliance costs
thus increase. In response to the policy and legal risks as well
as reputation risks, the Group regularly monitors existing
and emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to
climate and be prepared to alert the top management where
necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines and/
or reputational risks due to delayed response.
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SOCIAL
B1. Employment and Labor Practices

The Group stringently complies with national and local laws
and regulations concerning employment and labor practices,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.

B1.1: Employment Policies

The Group generally recruit our employees from the
open market. We intend to use our best effort to attract
and retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve
our Group. Our Group assesses the available human
resources on a continuous basis and determines whether
additional personnel is required to cope with our business
development from time to time.

We believe that employees are our most invaluable assets.
It is our priority to ensure that the occupational health
and safety of all employees, subcontractor workers and
the surrounding communities to our construction sites is
adequately maintained. Our comprehensive occupational
health and safety management system which is certified
to be in compliance with OHSAS 18001 international
standard in order to provide our employees with a safe
and healthy working environment. We further strive
to continuously improve our occupational health and
safety management system in accordance with guidance
received from the Labor Department from time to time.

It is also our aim to enhance the well-being and
development of our employees. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group has put in place policies to ensure
that it treats all employees on an equal footing in matters
related to, among others, recruitment, promotion,
appraisals, discipline, remuneration and benefits,
compensation and dismissal, and working hours and rest
periods. An employee’s age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, physical disability, ethnicity and religion would
not affect his career with us. During the Reporting Period,
we received no complaints regarding discrimination issues
from any of our stakeholders. Needless to say, we ensured
that no child nor forced labor was employed by the
Group. Apart from providing competitive remuneration
and benefits, we continue to support and nurture our
employees through staff development and training
programmes.
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The Group has devised a staff handbook for its employees REBECAEEEHTEIFM - K
to understand important information relating to the BEHRETHREEAASEBANERK
Group's human resources policies, rules, and work ethics FoHBIRREREREEENEE
surrounding employment. It is an essential tool in helping Bx e BEIFMEENBUERER
to define the expectations of both the management and BEMBHUARERBEZEZ TR
the employees, and also to protect them from unfair and/ RS — 858 RIEAR A EEE
or inconsistent treatment and discrimination. BZFH -
Workforce ZE 7
The Group had employed 123 full-time employees as RZE-=—F=A=+—8 £%£H
at 31 March 2022, all of whom are from Hong Kong. BIEA12322BET - 259K EE
Out of the total number of staff, 106 of our employees & BTHEH - 1060 BT ABIE
were male and 17 of them were female. Majority of the 17% &M - REBH B THE31-60
workforce were within the 31-60 age group, accounting REFEAER - 5 HRBAKET - 8%
for 94 of our staff, while 8 employees were under 30 BT A305A T &2148 B605% A £ ©
years old and 21 were over 60 years old.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's overall full- RERME - AEBEE2BET
time employee turnover rate was approximately 37%. MAREL)B37% - BUHERZMEE TR
The employee turnover rate for male and female were KEDRNEIA39% N24% o
approximately 39% and 24% respectively.

B1.2: Health and Safety B12: BEHZTE

The management of the Group is responsible for the AEEEEEARREENERRRER
overall health and safety of employees. The Group Ze o REEBRRET(RELE R
strictly follows relevant laws and regulations such as the FRARGIDZABE R AR - RIEH
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance. There was no M BERETETEEAREREL
material non-compliance with the applicable laws and ZEWERERERERNERZ LR
regulations relating to occupational health and safety SEEAERATE -
which had material impact to the Group during the
Reporting Period.
We place emphasis on occupational health and work BMEEBERERIEZSR - WA
safety and provide safety training to our staff covering BITREZ2EI - RRREEMH
topics such as our safety measures and procedures for ZEEBRENRERTEERE -
reporting accidents. Due to the nature of works, risks TEUEER  BINERSITERE
of accidents or injuries to workers are inherent. The BREM - NEEERAEMTE BN E
Group understands that preventive measures are way BpEE - At - BAIERBAERiE
more important than reactive measures. Therefore, TR T R =AE - AR 3 A
sufficient first-aid boxes have been equipped in the FAEZEHR - BRMIE 6 TEE
office and construction areas in case any emergencies EERZEEIRER - URERMY
happen and also we devised an occupational health and TARDEE -
safety management system to govern our workers and
subcontractors.
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Our project management team is responsible for
overseeing the implementation of our occupational health
and safety policies and ensuring that we comply with
applicable occupational health and safety standards and
laws. Our Group has put in place an internal safety manual
which is reviewed from time to time to incorporate
the best practices and to address and improve specific
areas of our safety management system. We require our
employees and our subcontractors’ employees to follow
our workplace safety rules as set out in the internal
safety manual. Our workplace and safety rules identify
common safety and health hazards and recommendations
on prevention of workplace accidents. We also provide
suitable personal protective equipment such as safety
helmet and safety boots to our employees based on the
type of works undertaken by them.

Our safety officer regularly provides guidance to our
workers and subcontractors on proper and safe working
practices. We may impose fine on or remove the
subcontractor who has repeatedly breached the internal
safety procedures from our internal approved list of
subcontractors. Subcontractor which failed to rectify its
breaches upon our requests will also be removed from
our internal approved list of subcontractors. We also hold
regular meetings with our subcontractors to discuss on
the implementation of safety measures and follow up with
any safety issues identified during the course of project
implementation.

Looking ahead, we would continue to promote
occupational health and safety to its employees and avoid
any work injury or accident by all means. Work injuries
will be reported according to our internal guidelines which
was set up with reference to the work injury reporting
requirement by the Labor Department. Based on our
occupational health and safety management system, we
ensured safety and health of our employees in connection
with the use, handling, storage and transport of articles
and substances; providing all necessary information,
instructions, training and supervision for ensuring safety
and health; providing and maintaining safe access to
and egress from the workplaces; and providing and
maintaining a safe and healthy working environment.

During the Reporting Period, 2 incidents of workplace
accidents resulting in injuries to the Group’s employee
and/or subcontractor’'s employee arose, which led to
300 lost labor days (FY2021: 2 incidents of workplace
accidents arose, which led to 825 lost labor days). All
workplace accidents were fully covered by the relevant
insurance policies. The Group is pleased to report that no
fatality cases occurred during the Reporting Period.
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B1.3: Development and Training

The knowledge and skill levels of our employees are
vital to the Group’s success, and hence we provide
various types of training to our employees and subsidise
our employees to attend various training courses
covering areas such as technical knowledge relating to
the carrying out of foundation works, safety, first aid,
regulatory compliance and environmental matters. Such
training courses include our internal trainings as well
as courses organised by external parties such as the
Construction Machinery Technical Training Centre and
other training service providers. Employees carrying out
construction works at construction sites are generally
required to be registered pursuant to the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance (Chapter 583 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), which imposes certain training
requirements on workers prior to registration with the
Construction Industry Council. As at the Reporting Period,
all of our employees carrying out construction works on
construction sites were registered under the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage breakdown
of employees trained and the average training hours
per employee, by gender and employee category are as
follows:

B13: BERIEH

12 B e A8 K B B /K S AR R B RO AX
DMEEEEE - Fit - BB
MiEEREZBE - YEBHMD
BE2MEAZENEIRE  BRE
HERMEATREHENRMAR - %
2 2R EEARNRREES
M o ZERIRERBERFANAEST
Bl DA Bz f 91 BB A £ (AR SE MR R AT 5
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BEBRBEEBADIFESSERERXT
ANEEMHEBIHR M - ZOEPIEKT
ARRRER B G ETEM A AETT
AT - RN|EME - RAEEE
THEREETIRNMEREREHER
REIEE T AGEMIEBIHIE M -

REEDA - RIS RERESIES
MENES T AL REAEE TR
HIRB T -

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations such as the Employment Ordinance, the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong. Background checks
were conducted for new employees to ensure that no
teenagers under the statutory minimum working age
would be employed. All employees must provide their
personal identity documents to prove their ages and
identities. During the Reporting Period, no material case of
non-compliance with local child and forced labor related
laws and regulations were noted.

Percentage Average
of employees training hours
trained per employee
(%) (hours)
BEES
ZIEE FHZ IR
AD (%) (NEF)
By Gender BB

e Female o I 100 8.0
e Male o HiE 100 8.0

By Employee Category RIEESEHR
e Senior Management o SREERE 100 8.0
e Middle Management o HREEE 100 8.0

B14: Labor Standards B14: % TR
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B2. Operating Practices

B2.1:

B2.2:

Supply Chain Management

As mentioned, our quality management system which
governs our daily operation for quality control and
improvement meets the requirements of 1ISO 9001:2015.
Our internal policies and thus the procurement process
are governed by this standard. We maintain an internal
approved list of suppliers set up by the board of directors.
Only suppliers fulfilling our stringent quality standards can
be added to the list for our purchases.

Under our policies, the Group would only purchase
supplies from these approved suppliers to ensure quality of
our services and purchases. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had engaged 139 (FY2021: 157) suppliers and
subcontractors while all of them were located in Hong
Kong. Further, with reference to the quality requirement
of our projects, our project management team would
also hold meetings with suppliers to communicate our
requirements, while at the same time inspect the quality
of the goods and services provided by the suppliers from
time to time. Upon reception of services and goods, the
project management team is responsible for the inspection
of the delivered goods and services to ensure they can
meet our quality requirements before settling payment.

For subcontractors’ quality management, similar to that of
purchasing, we maintain a list of approved subcontractors.
Regular inspection on the quality of works and progress
as delivered by our subcontractors would be performed
by our project management team. We have made it clear
to our subcontractors that compliance with the labor laws
and regulations is mandatory when handling safety and
employment matters at construction sites.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any non-compliances in relation to safety and labor laws
and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing better services to the
citizens and creating higher return for the stakeholders.
The Group strives to maintain good relationship with
our major customers to establish good reputation and to
gain future business opportunity. As foundation works
contractor, the Group addresses the significance of public
health during the construction work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any service-related complaint from customers and did
not identify any non-compliance in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters.
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B2.3: Anti-corruption

Over the years, we have witnessed no incidences of
suspected or actual bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering activities occurring within the Group. We stand
firmly by our anti-corruption policies and procurement
practices as stated in our internal manuals which
comply with applicable laws. Acceptance of kickbacks,
commissions or any form of benefit is strictly prohibited
during any procurement exercise, contract negotiation or
other business dealings.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations in Hong Kong related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering including but not limited to,
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, that would have a
significant impact to the Group.

B3. Community B3.

B3.1: Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public welfare
activities. No formal policy on community investment has
been established. Owing to the nature of our business,
we are not required to label any products or to advertise
our services. Further, we generally do not handle personal
data and, as such, are exposed to minimal risks of
breaching privacy laws.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
temporarily suspended the organisation and participation
of charitable and voluntary activities.
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FUTURE APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE FRERAZEREMNHS

DEVELOPMENT

In the future, we will: BEIARK -

. continue to raise our staff and subcontractors’ awareness in e
relation to environmental protection;

e maintain the highest standards for occupational health and e
safety to protect our staff members and the communities
located in the vicinity of our operations; and

e  further extend our care to the community by participating in e
more charity services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed to achieving and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, as our Board
believes that good and effective corporate governance practices are
key to obtaining and maintaining the trust of the shareholders of the
Company and other stakeholders, and are essential for encouraging
accountability and transparency so as to sustain the success of the
Group and to create long-term value for the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). To the best knowledge of
the Board, the Company has complied with the CG Code during
the Year and up to the date of this report, with the exception of the
deviation from code provision C.2.1 as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
in respect of the Shares (the “Code of Conduct”). After specific
enquires by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard of dealings set out in
the Code of Conduct during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and is collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company. The Board meets regularly and Board
meetings are held four times a year at quarterly intervals.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established.

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung currently assumes the role of both chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considers that both roles being held by Mr. Yip will provide a strong
and consistent leadership to the Company which will facilitate
effective planning and efficient management of the Company.
Furthermore, having considered Mr. Yip's extensive experience in
the foundation industry, the relationships Mr. Yip has built with
customers and the historical development of the Group, the Board
considers that it is beneficial for the Group to have Mr. Yip continue
to act as both chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.
In order to maintain good corporate governance and fully comply
with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is an independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement, and that non-executive Directors
should be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following five
Directors:
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Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung HEFLE
(chairman of the Board and chief executive officer) (BEFSLBRITEAAL)

Ms. Kwan Chui Ling MR%w+
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHITES

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan B R

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest EREE S E

Mr. Tang Sher Kin BRALER ST
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code states that the Board should
meet regularly and the Board meetings should be held at least four
times each year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation of a majority of Directors, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication.

The attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board
meeting, committee meetings and AGM held during the Year and
up to the date of this report are set out in the table below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EENZEEHEERHFETE

EEEATANTAGRXECS1IERH  EF
SRENETER  EFSeRRELEBFERELT
MR RORBFE—R > YHRKBOEEHS
HFEBEMETBAT AEB2EA -

BREEHFEAFEREEARERRRTNES
2EH  ZESSRNMRRBFERGNRENT
=&

Board Audit  Nomination Remuneration

meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM
Name of Director EEig EZgel ERZES REZ8E FMzEE REEFAE
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung BBt 5/5 N/ATEFR 22 22 17
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling BERRLT 5/5 NATER N/ATNE A N/ATNE A 1/1
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan Bt 5/5 6/6 22 22 1N
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest Sy 5/5 6/6 N/ATEF 212 11
Mr. Tang Sher Kin HHREs 5/5 6/6 22 NATNEA 11

The forthcoming AGM will be held on 26 August 2022.

Apart from the Board meeting, the Chairman also held meeting with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
the executive Directors during the Year.

The biographical details of each of the Directors and their
relationships are set out in the section headed “Directors and senior
management” of this report.

In compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors representing more than
one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independent non-executive Directors
have brought in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors have
made various contributions to the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence, and the
Company considers such independent non-executive Director to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action against the
Directors has been arranged by the Company.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

In accordance with the articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any new Director appointed by the
Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company following his/her
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting;
and (i) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company and ensures that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The Board is primarily
responsible for formulating the business strategy, reviewing and
monitoring the business performance of the Company, approving
the financial statements and annual budgets as well as directing
and supervising the management of the Company. Execution
of operational matters and the powers thereof are delegated to
the management by the Board with clear directions. The Board
is regularly provided with management update report to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance,
position, development and prospects of the Company in sufficient
detail.

The Board is also responsible for the corporate governance functions
of the Group, which includes:

—  To develop and review of the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

—  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

—  To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

—  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

— To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, the Board has established
three Board committees to oversee specific aspects of the Group’s
affairs, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Each Board committee has its own terms
of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Each Board committee has also been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and, upon reasonable request,
is able to seek independent profession advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Group's expense.

Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 19 February 2021
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to, among other things, review
and approve our Group's financial reporting process and internal
control and risk management system, oversee our audit process and
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Cheng
Shing Yan, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest and Mr. Tang Sher Kin. The
chairlady of the Audit Committee is Ms. Cheng Shing Yan.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee held 6 meetings, at which it has reviewed and discussed
the Company’s audited consolidated financial results for the
FY2020/21, including the accounting principles and practice adopted
by the Group, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report, the interim report
for the six months ended 30 September 2021, the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems as well as
the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee has also
recommended to the Board to consider the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited ("GT”) as the Company’s external
independent auditors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Nomination Committee

The Group established the Nomination Committee on 19 February
2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and our
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on a regular
basis to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Yip Kwong Cheung, Ms. Cheng Shing Yan and Mr. Tang Sher Kin.
The chairperson of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Yip Kwong
Cheung.

The policy for the nomination of Directors, including the nomination
procedure and process, are to invite nominations from Board
members or Nomination Committee members. After undertaking
adequate due diligence in respect of any such nominee, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
makes recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee considers the following criteria in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the relevant
industry and other relevant sectors;

() commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

(f) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent
non-executive Director; and

(g) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the

Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings,
at which it (i) assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, and (ii) recommended to the Board for
consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2021.

Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Company considers diversity
of Board members to be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments are based on merit, and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved
the objectives of its Board Diversity Policy for the Year.

Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Committee on 19 February
2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to, among other things, formulate
our remuneration policy, review and determine the terms of
remuneration packages of our Directors and senior management
and review and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to our corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time. The Remuneration Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest, Mr. Yip
Kwong Cheung and Ms. Cheng Shing Yan. The chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings, at which it reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure for as well as the remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management. No Director was involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years and such letter of appointment may be terminated by
either party giving at least one month’s notice in writing. Also, the
independent non-executive Directors are subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of their independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors namely
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest and Mr. Tang
Sher Kin to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules for the Relevant Period.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of a director’s
responsibilities under applicable statues and common law, the Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s
business and governance policies. The Company will from time to
time provide briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills relating to their duties and responsibilities.

All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expense and they are requested to provide the
Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, all Directors had attended
training sessions on obligations, duties and responsibilities of
directors during the Relevant Period and had provided details of
their training records to the Company.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct. Other
employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions.
The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information or any use of such information for the advantage
of any individual. Inside information and other information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules will be
announced on the respective websites of Stock Exchange and the
Company in due course.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung was appointed by the Board as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 17
February 2021. The biographical details of Mr. Wong are set out
under the section headed “Directors and senior management”.
During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration bands of senior management is
listed as follows:
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No. of person(s)

Band of remuneration (HK$) HENEE (B T) A
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 07702 1,000,000 7T 4

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees are set out in notes 12 and 13 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure the financial statements are published
in a timely manner. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report as annexed to this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to the external independent
auditor of the Company and its affiliates is as follows:

ESHGEUBHRRARNER

oh

FMAER LA S BRI 5 R
EWARMBEM A EH A RB N ELE
RERERNEATRAREE -

oh

o

EFNERFEAARRAEENNHERE - &
& =i
BEtE

RARINEB XA L H A KB R A MR
RO MERTERNERINARE B
BB

B ZHETNE
WA - B REARAINEB B
HBEATOEMFIRMT -

HK$
Description it BT
Audit Services ERRY
Annual audit fee FEFZER 950,000
Grand total #ET 950,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness. The Board must ensure that the
Company establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the
Group endeavours to identify risks, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures.
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The Group does not have an internal audit department but the
Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a need
for such an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, the Board, as supported
by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group's risk management and internal control system features
the following processes to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks, and review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, as well as resolve material internal control
defects:

° Members of the Board/Audit Committee discuss with the
external independent auditor key issues in relation to internal
controls, audit findings and risk management;

e The Board/Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures; in this process,
management is principally responsible for the preparation of
Group financial statements including the selection of suitable
accounting policies;

e The external independent auditor is responsible for auditing
and attesting to Group financial statements and report to
the management of the Company from time to time on
any weakness in controls which come to their attention;
the Board/Audit Committee oversees the respective work of
management and external auditors to ensure the management
has discharged its duty in respect of having an effective internal
control procedures.

During the Year, the Board had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system which covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. The Board
considered the risk management and internal controls systems of
the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
aimed to manage, rather than eliminating, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and thus can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequate
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
the budget accounting and financial reporting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening general meetings by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles, and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the Listing Rules (as amended from
time to time), the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). EGMs shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or the
Company Secretary by mail at Unit 2909-2910, 29/F, The Octagon,
6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such requisition should specify clearly
the name of the eligible shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of
the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and must be
signed by the eligible shareholder(s) concerned together with a sum
of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as
not in order or the shareholders concerned have failed to deposit
sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the eligible shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM.

If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above in the paragraph headed “Procedures for
Convening General Meetings by Shareholders”.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationship. Shareholders
are encouraged to send their enquiries to the Board by post to the
principal place of business set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in this report. Shareholders may also make enquires
with the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board strives to maintain on-going dialogue with shareholders
and the investment community. The Company has established
a shareholders communication policy to set out the Company’s
procedures in providing the shareholders and investment community
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

Latest information on the Group including, but not limited to,
annual, interim and quarterly reports, circulars, announcements,
and notices of AGMs are update on the website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the Company
(www.kwong-luen.com.hk).

In addition, the Company regards the AGM as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company. The Articles is available on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Board is pleased to submit this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is that of investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 20 May 2020. Its Shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2021. Pursuant
to the reorganisation of the Group in connection with the
Listing, the Company underwent a corporate reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group on 17 February 2021. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure — Reorganisation” to the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS

The Directors at who held the office during the Year and up to date
of this report is as follows:

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung (Executive Director)

Ms. Kwan Chui Ling (Executive Director)

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Tang Sher Kin (Independent non-executive Director)

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles, Ms. Cheng
Shing Yan and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest will retire from the Board
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all independent non-executive Directors are
considered to be independent.
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RESULTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 76 to 155 of this report. The business
review of the Group for the Year, which includes the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis using financial
key performance indicators of the Group’s business, particulars
of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, and discussion on
the Company’s environmental policies and performance and the
relationships with its stakeholders, can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” and “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of
this report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 156 of this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

A statement of the reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company as at 31 March 2022 is set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board takes into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;
(i) capital and debt level of the Group;

(i) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(v) the general market conditions; and
(vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
any other applicable laws, rule and regulations and the Articles. The
dividend policy of the Company will be reviewed by the Board from
time to time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific period.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the declaration of any
final dividend for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

The Board confirms that during the Year, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
Laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM will be held on 26 August 2022. The notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to shareholders of the
Company in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due
course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 23 August 2022 to Friday, 26 August 2022,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In the case of Shares, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 22 August 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 February
2021 (the "Adoption Date”). The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The following is a summary of the principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward the
participants (the “Participants”) who have contributed or
will contribute to our Group and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of our Company and the
Shares for the benefit of our Company and shareholders as a
whole, and to maintain or attract business relationships with
the Participants whose contributions are or may be beneficial
to the growth of our Group.
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(B)

@

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Our Board may, at any time during the period for which the
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective, make an offer for
options to (i) any directors (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
and employees of any member of our Group; and (ii) any
advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, subcontractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers of any member
of our Group.

Payment on acceptance of option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to our Company on
acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the grant.

(D) Subscription price

(E)
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The subscription price (“Subscription Price”) shall be a price
determined by our Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on which
the option is offered to a Participant (“Offer Date"); (i) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company shall not in aggregate
exceed the number of Shares that shall represent 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date upon which the
Share Option Scheme takes effect, which shall be deemed
to fall on the Listing Date (“Scheme Mandate”), which is
100,000,000 Shares representing 10% of issued Shares as
at the date of this report. For the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant scheme shall not be counted.
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(F) Maximum holding by option-holder

Unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting in
the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, our Board shall not
grant options to any option-holder if it would result in the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued to that Participant
on exercise of his options (including both exercised and
outstanding options) granted and to be granted to such person
during any 12-month period exceeding 1% of the total Shares
then in issue.

(G) Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
("Option Period”) shall be a period of time to be notified by
our Board to each option-holder, which our Board may in its
absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not
be more than ten years from the Offer Date.

(H) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from the date on which the
Share Option Scheme takes effect in accordance with its terms,
after which period no further options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects. In particular, all options granted
before the end of such period shall continue to be valid and
exercisable after the end of such period in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, no option has
been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the Year attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

B IR R 5
HEEHA - MERERSEAARBSMES
ERRERS -

ITREFRAER

AEETEEP RMHEHREFAHEERRER
DT

%
SALES HE
—The largest customer —&EAEF 64
—Five largest customers —RAAREP 95
PURCHASES 23
—The largest supplier —BRAHER 17
—Five largest suppliers —hRHER 50

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, details of significant transactions with its related
parties or transactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in the note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
None of those transactions constitutes a disclosable connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND OTHER
INFORMATION

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, the Underlying Shares or
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the required
standard of dealings as referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

I.  Long position in the ordinary Shares
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BEERTETHRAERNEAQ TR EBH
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. BERIFE

Number of
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
BEBEERN
EEHE REEME RHEE BETED L
Mr. Yip Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%
Interest held jointly with another person
Interest of spouse (Note)
BhAE RS AR R
HE M A T HFERFAEZE
fe B e (PIsE)
Ms. Kwan Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%
Interest held jointly with another person
Interest of spouse (Note)
faz+ ZAEHEE R

BEH A A+ HER AR
Ao iR (MYRE)

Note: Kwong Luen Prosperity holding 750,000,000 Shares is
beneficially owned as to 50% and 50% by Mr. Yip and Ms.
Kwan respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip and Ms. Kwan
are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Kwong Luen
Prosperity. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Yip. Accordingly,
each of them is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares which the other is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

st EH S 88 (354 750,000,000 B% B 15 ) B
%%E&@ﬁi D Bl E %= ¥ B 50% &
50% ° RIEFEH MEED - EhER
Eokeda N N =T R S ok ) ralask
Bl c ML AELENERSE - Hit
MESLBREROME  HESAWEIE
REER S —H GRS ATA R E#
B o
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Il. Long position in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation — Kwong Luen Prosperity

Il. REHEE - EHEEREBERTE

Number of
shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
BEBEERN
EEpE EEME RGEE REBEDLL
Mr. Yip Beneficial owner 2 50%
a4 EnEAA
Ms. Kwan Beneficial owner 2 50%
7k om EnEAA

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2022, the following parties (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

bR EXPIEBREN  RZE__F=H4
=1+—B BEEFIAQANEETH
ANB AR BB EHAE (T & R FE
F X ERE B EXVED) E A - FEREA
PR EREEFPERLENE R RIEES
N EAEEH 352 BE TN E L MaER
AR ©

TERRREMALRERT R KA
R IERER AR

ﬁ_g::¢5ﬂ5+—aqukﬂ§$ﬁ
RABEBITHRABBRIN R AR
FIN/N 7@% 5 K HRE (50 5336 5B BIFE
LM EI5%E A Y RERS ¢

Number of
Name of substantial Shares held/ Percentage of
shareholder Nature of interest interested shareholding
BEBAEERN
TERRER EmME RO EE REBEDL
Kwong Luen Prosperity Beneficial owner (Note) 750,000,000 75%
=12 EaEA A ) 75%

Note:  Kwong Luen Prosperity is beneficially owned as to 50% and 50% by
Mr. Yip and Ms. Kwan respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip and
Ms. Kwan are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Kwong
Luen Prosperity.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Company is
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive Directors currently in office have entered into
service agreements with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue unless
terminated by either party giving no less than three months’ written
notice served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by either party giving no less than one month’s written notice served
by either party on the other.

The term of service of a Director is subject to retirement by rotation
of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed
to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM has entered into a service
contract or an appointment letter with our Company or any of our
subsidiaries (other than contracts or appointment letters expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval at general meetings and such emoluments
shall be determined by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of remuneration of the
Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management’s remuneration, on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy, and on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of office or appointment.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors
against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions are set out in the Directors’ Report and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Notwithstanding the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a person
who at any time during the Year was a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiary undertakings was a party to any arrangements to
enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during
the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is interested in a business apart from the Group’s business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group'’s business during the Year, and is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rues.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of controlling shareholders of the Company, Mr. Yip, Ms.
Kwan and Kwong Luen Prosperity has confirmed to the Company of
their respective due compliance with the terms of the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) during the Year
and up to the date of this report.

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
of the Deed of Non-Competition and were satisfied that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition had been duly complied with and
enforced during the Year and up to the date of this report.

During the Year, the Board had not received any written
confirmation from any of our Directors in respect of interest in any
business (other than our Group) which is or is likely to be directly or
indirectly in competition with our business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

During the Year and as at the date of this report, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained a
sufficient amount of public float for its Shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

GT has been appointed as the auditor of the Company on 21
April 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Ernst & Young. GT shall hold office until the conclusion
of the following annual general meeting. The consolidated
financial statements for the Year were audited by GT, who
will retire at the end of the forthcoming AGM, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of GT as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

For the three years prior to 31 March 2022 (excluding the period
before the Listing Date) and up to the date of this report, save as
the resignation of Ernst & Young and the appointment of GT as the
auditor of the Company on 21 April 2022, there has not been any
change in the Company'’s auditors.

By Order of the Board

Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited
Yip Kwong Cheung

Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

iR SCTE: S

GrantThornton
N [=]

To the members of Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kwong
Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 155, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Revenue recognition for construction services

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recognised
revenue from provision of construction services
amounting to HK$548,839,000.

The Group has recognised revenue from the provision of
construction services over time, using an input method.

The input method recognises revenue based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services. This involves the use of management judgements
and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of
deliveries and services required, total contract costs
incurred, forecasting the costs to complete a contract,
valuing contract variations, claims and potential liquidated
damages and estimating the provision for onerous
contracts.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.13, 4 and 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

Our audit procedures included:

e obtaining an understanding from management on
the budget costs and how the budget costs are
evaluated;

e understanding the controls of the Group over its
processes to record contract costs and contract
revenue, the calculation of the stage of completion
and the identification of onerous contracts, if any;

e  obtaining the breakdown of budgeted contract costs
and, on a sample basis, evaluated management’s
estimation of the budget contract costs;

e checking the basis of the budgeted revenue to
the underlying contracts and variation orders on a
sample basis;

e checking, on a sample basis, the contract costs
incurred to the amounts of costs recorded for the
direct labour costs, payment applications from
subcontractors, invoices from suppliers and payment
certificates issued by contract customers;

e checking the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the construction contract to the subcontractors
and suppliers’ quotations and payroll record, and
comparing actual costs incurred with the estimated
total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services to assess the status of the projects on a
sample basis; and

e assessing the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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Estimation of expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and contract assets

As at 31 March 2022, the net carrying amount of
trade receivables and contract assets amounted to
HK$22,257,000 (net of ECL allowance of HK$743,000)
and HK$171,938,000 (net of ECL allowance of
HK$9,134,000) respectively.

The measurement on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets under ECL approach was estimated by
management through the application of management
judgements and use of highly subjective assumptions,
such as the payment history and management'’s industry
knowledge and experience.

The impact of current economic factors and forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors were also
considered in management'’s assessment of the likelihood
of recovery from customers.

Management engaged external valuer to assist
management to perform the ECL assessment on the
Group's trade receivables and contract assets.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.7, 4, 17 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

e Understanding the Group's processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of trade receivables and
contract assets;

e evaluating the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by management in their ECL
assessment and their calculation of the ECL
allowance under the ECL approach;

e understanding and discussing with management
for their judgements, historical loss pattern and
basis of judgements used on such data under the
ECL approach; and understanding management'’s
procedures with the customers over aged receivables
or amounts in dispute, if any;

e  assessing the ECL allowance as at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account factors such as
the payment history and other relevant information;

e  evaluating the historical loss rates and assumptions
made for current economic conditions and forward-
looking information;

e involving our engaged valuation specialist to assist us
to evaluate the methodologies and assumptions used
in the ECL calculation; and

e assessing the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
o RR A G

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information in
the 2022 annual report of the Company, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

2021/22 EEHE o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BB AR S

BREMBETEE
BfE

PR R AER

BEENER  RUSRSVBHRREBEBES T FE
BN GEF AR M B E RSB RRAIE A 12
*RE YHABRERESFERNZBEE RS - &
%E*E%fﬂﬁ%i%ﬁﬂl%?ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂx%#&ﬁt%iE’Ji‘
R BRUEASN  ABEALEEMAR - BETE
?ME%(EW?&&%E‘]Weﬁ&ﬂﬁ@/\iﬁaijﬁkﬁ
EMEE -

BERRERSKFHRE - ETERBRREE

B EAETHERS  ER - EAERRATE

RFABREEE IR - SERRIRIM AT A XGRS SR AR B/ AL

HEEEMEMEBERRERAI T EREY

ﬁ‘%%&i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ ERREAR B M TSR FTE L R ER
- BB BER SRR RO Al AR AFE K -

ERBEESENEAETETNBET  BFE
T EEHE - RS TERIRREEE - BF

o BRI EBENEFFRERMEBERAS Y
BHRAFEERFERRANER - &t &
WITHREFAREZFRAR - A LER
REMBEBENRTRE FREFEEN
A o AR RES R BER 1%3& =
BER - EREL - SORERABE %IJZ
- R REEERARFMEHNE A
AR R B 2 e 7 1A 7 B 3 R R 8 R T S 3N
B K SRR PR RO L

o THRERFTHBAONEES - ARHEER

HES IR - BB RIS ﬁmlW*B
THINEREERER -

o HEEEMRASTERRMREERIEL
SRTAFTMERE R ERN AR -

REBMIBEZERERLA

73



74

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
o RR A G

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

24 June 2022

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeRmREME N ER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE FHET FAT

Revenue &= 5 548,839 481,710
Cost of sales THEMK AR (502,672) (420,887)
Gross profit EF 46,167 60,823
Other income and gains E A A R ias 6 1,538 4,569
Administrative expenses TR S (11,409) (7,523)
Fair value gain/(loss) on a financial asset 12 AF(Et ABRSHSEEE

at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEW(EER) 31 147 (1,064)
Expected credit losses on contract assets & #I& ETBHAEEER 17 (6,976) (2,158)
Expected credit losses on trade B S EBGRIRTRBE EEE

receivables 18 (665) (78)
Finance costs BE KA 7 (541) (289)
Listing expenses WX - (14,267)
Profit before income tax BR AT S B AR R 9 28,261 40,013
Income tax expense PSR 8 (4,742) (8,879)
Profit and total comprehensive RARHEE AEM

income for the year attributable FRRFRZEKE

to owners of the Company #zg 23,519 31,134

HK cents HK cents
AL Al

Earnings per share attributable to  Z&AF#EA AEBLERER
owners of the Company

— Basic and diluted —EARNEE 11 2.35 4.07

The notes on pages 82 to 155 are an integral part of these  S82E155HKIMERZFAR A M MAREK
consolidated financial statements. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2022 R —FE—-—F=H=+—H

2022 PAYA
—ZE-= —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N YN ] 14 62,904 37,423
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 1,360 448
Prepayments and deposits FENFERIES 19 232 =
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFTABZRR
profit or loss TRIEE 16 4,497 4,350
Total non-current assets IRBEELAE 68,993 42,221
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BREE 17 171,938 120,315
Trade receivables B 5 WA 18 22,257 5,936
Prepayments and deposits ENFIERES 19 63 6,547
Current tax assets BIHATR IR & 2= 4,170 =
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 20 42,646 107,649
Total current assets RBEEAE 241,074 240,447
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and retention payables B ZRENFIEREMNTIE
RE 21 22,527 23,183
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A R E fth FE A 508 22 8,318 3,911
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 23 20,040 14,861
Lease liabilities HEESE 15 561 333
Current tax liabilities BIHATRIE B & - 8,228
Total current liabilities REEEHEEE 51,446 50,516
Net current assets REBEERE 189,628 189,931
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 258,621 232,152
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBERRR

As at 31 March 2022 R —FE - —F=H=+—H

2022 PAYA
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo FHET T
Non-current liabilities FFRBaE
Accruals and other payables FEEH & A R ELfth FE A /I8 22 263 -
Secured bank loans BHEIRRITER 23 2,466 2,987
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 649 192
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 24 7,123 4,372
Total non-current liabilities FREEEEEE 10,501 7,551
Net assets BEE 248,120 224,601
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of the AL FIHEBASEN
Company
Share capital &N 25 10,000 10,000
Reserves 1] 26 238,120 214,601
Total equity EREHE 248,120 224,601
Yip Kwong Cheung Kwan Chui Ling
EEH 2R
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
TERHTESE HITEE

The notes on pages 82 to 155 are an integral part of these 282ZF155B M A% E4RE M MR AIHEK
consolidated financial statements. o e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

pey e B

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —#=H=+—HIL F/Z

HK$'000

Share
premium*
B A7 R fE*
HK$'000
T
(Note 26)
(Bf5E26)

Total
equity
AR
HK$'000
FET

Retained
earnings*
REBF*

HK$'000

THET

Share
capital

LES

FET
(Note 25)
(BizE25)

Balance at 1 April 2020 RZE-ZTFMA—Hz&H - - 80,822 80,822
Profit and total comprehensive & FI K 2 HE WS 4258

income for the year - - 31,134 31,134
Issue of a new share upon AN R MR8 TR D

incorporation of the Company —# - - -
Capitalisation issue of shares B EITR A (BidEE25(c))

(note 25 (c)) 7,500 (7,500) - -
New shares issued pursuant to  ARIEAR (D3 E 31T D (Y

the share offer (note 25 (d)) ££25(d)) 2,500 132,500 = 135,000
Share issue cost AR AD B TR AR - (22,355) - (22,355)
Balance at 31 March 2021 and RZZT-_—F=A=+—AHAK

1 April 2021 ZE-—FNA—B &R 10,000 102,645 111,956 224,601
Profit and total comprehensive A& Al & 2 W s 4B 58

income for the year - - 23,519 23,519
Balance at 31 March 2022 N=B-—=—f=H=+—-Hz2

2323 10,000 102,645 135,475 248,120

ZE R B BERA MR R NRER S [
238,120,000/ 7T (=T = — 4 : 214,601,0007%
o)

* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of =
HK$238,120,000 (2021: HK$214,601,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

#  This item was with an amount less than a thousand Hong Kong dollars.  #  ZIAEBMSFBERTET -

F82E 155 A A% T4 MR MM

#Bo o

The notes on pages 82 to 155 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SREELRE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT TAT

Cash flows from operating activities RE EEFERSRE

Profit before income tax bR FT1S A AT & ) 28,261 40,013
Adjustments for: A NS IEEH HE -
Finance costs REE R AN 7 541 289
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE REERE
plant and equipment, net B, (Wzs )35 9 2,042 (1,170)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BE REEITE
equipment 14 13,732 8,207
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15 774 670
Fair value (gain)/loss on a financial asset %A F(EEF AIBZEHIE Y
at fair value through profit or loss BEMNAFEMWE)
B 31 (147) 1,064
Expected credit losses on contract assets & #)& ETBH(EE &8 17 6,976 2,158
Expected credit losses on trade B S REW S IETRHEEERE
receivables 18 665 78

Operating cash flows before working LEECEYRINL LIRS

capital changes M= 52,844 51,309
Increase in contract assets BHEEEN (58,599) (65,778)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables & 5 U ERIA (1) FA (16,986) 4,383
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and ~ FE KB Mg & w4 ()

deposits 6,252 (5,266)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and retention & 5 &~ 5008 & fE~ T2

payables RED R, /180 (656) 4,358
Increase in accruals and other payables — fE&T2 F K E {th B ZOEIE AN 4,407 594
Cash used in operations KEPTRIR S (12,738) (10,400)
Interest paid EFIE (495) (256)
Interest element of lease payments HENZEF S ED (46) (33)
Purchase of a financial asset at fair value B EIZAF(E AIBRH

through profit or loss TRIEE - (5,414)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EEEENEH (14,389) (4,220)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEB TR F5E (27,668) (20,323)
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Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HRABERE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

REFDMERERE
BEME  BFEIRE

2022

—— —

[

HK$'000
TR

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
AT

equipment (41,255) (13,989)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE K&

plant and equipment FR1S 58 - 20
Repayment from a director EEEN - 7
Net cash used in investing activities KEEESFTAR S5 (41,255) (13,962)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEEFIERELRE
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of BITIRD TS 5IE

expenses (30BRFAX) - 112,645
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAE D (738) 611)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERATISHIA 60,471 38,175
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (55,813) (23,327)
Net cash from financing activities BE R B FSIRE 3,920 126,882
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERELZEY

cash equivalents OB),EhnEsE (65,003) 92,597
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#13R& RIS EEY

of year 107,649 15,052
Cash and cash equivalents FERESRESEEY

at end of year 20 42,646 107,649

The notes on pages 82 to 155 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. o e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 May 2020 with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The registered address of the Company is 71 Fort Street, PO
Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Unit 2909-2910, 29/F, The Octagon, 6 Sha Tsui
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

On 11 March 2021, the shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in the provision
of construction services in Hong Kong. There has been no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Kwong Luen Prosperity Limited (“Kwong Luen Prosperity”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") on 18 May 2020, is the immediate holding company
of the Company. In the opinion of the directors, Kwong
Luen Prosperity is also the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$"000"), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 24 June 2022.

—RER

Bt TRERAERAR([RAT DR
—ZEERA AT HERBERESFERARNER
REHEaMKXZRBRAGF - XAF]
) & it # 5E & 71 Fort Street, PO Box 500,
George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106,
Cayman Islands ° ANA B3 Z & 27 7
BRI AL DB BOTR S ERKP 02918
2909-2910%F °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I IRaRIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1. —RER@
Interests in subsidiaries R B2 RS
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 RZEZ—FR-ZF-Z—F=A=+—
and 2021 are as follows: B ARRWBARGELT
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued attributable
registration ordinary/ to the Company
and business registered ARF
SR Type of share capital EEEREAL
Company name Zak legal entity BRTLE/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NGRS =S EAERER FEai1]1 N HE MiE IEER
Kwong Luen Success  The BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited company
EMEXERAR  HABEZEE BRAH (s 100 - REER
Kwong Luen Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100  Provision of
Engineering company construction
Limited services in Hong
Kong
BB IRERAR & BRAR 28T - 100 REBRMERERS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXETHERMUE

POLICIES
2.1 Basis of presentation

For the listing of the Company’s shares, the
Company underwent a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”), further details of which are set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 26 February 2021.
Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group on 17 February 2021.

As the Reorganisation only involved inserting new holding
companies at a top of an existing operating entity and has
not resulted in any changes of economic substance, these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 have been presented as a continuation of the
existing group using the pooling of interests method.

Accordingly, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been prepared as if the current group structure
had been in existence at the beginning of the year ended
31 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss which has been measured
at fair value. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)
POL|C|ES (continued)
2.2 Basis of preparation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL|C|ES (continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation 23 MEANREE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

B AR RRBERAARENEL
ARESFZA=T AL MBS
Ko

fiE AR AANSETES  BEE - fiH
AEBAR2E-FERZEBHMA K
BRERRA2RE®% - BAkNEAY

with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns ERTEEIMEEADOR - AlHZ
through its power over the entity. When assessing BERERZEGE RAHAEERS
whether the Group has power over the entity, only HZEREGEGER  EZR(AXR
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group SERHEMG R ) EZE EEE
and others) are considered. BEERER -

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a
disposal group.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre- or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR RN T

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

nﬂ-\

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the end of the reporting
period retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e.
only translated using the exchange rates at the transaction
date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y% - BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at
acquisition cost (including any cost directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Group’s management). They are
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

WME - BEKRETIREAKARNE
ER(ERERRBNEEEEDHRE
AR B IR ETRHR T EEAT
FHLE KA EAIA) - HiRA
BB RETTE MRS ERE (0
BFIEE -

FrEABRENEM[FTAERFHR
BT OIFRFER - AMHE ERAR
HRIRMEE -

Leasehold Shorter of estimated useful lives HEMERE BENMGAIER
improvements or remaining lease terms of £F Bk Tl g4 TE A
the assets (ABEE B%)
Plant and machinery 15% %= % AR, 15%
Furniture and fixtures ~ 20% REREE 20%
Office equipment 20% E PN 20%

Estimates of residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt B #R R P RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

n\ﬂ-\

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, are classified into amortised cost
and FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

—  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that
are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs or other financial items, except for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and contract
assets which are presented as separate items in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (continued) 2.6 £EL T Aum)

Financial assets (continued) THEE &)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets THEENEENE
Debt investments BRRE

Financial assets at amortised cost BT EN A E

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

—  they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables and deposits fall into
this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business
model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect
and sell” are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IE RN E

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

nV-F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and retention
payables, accrual and other payables, secured bank loans
and leases liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted
for transaction costs unless the Group designated a
financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

All interest-related charges reported in profit or loss are
included in finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
2.10.

Trade and retention payables and accruals and
other payables

Trade and retention payables and accruals and other
payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &% —F — —# = H=+—HIF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EARESTEHEHME @)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets and contract

2.7 TREERSNEERE

assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables and contract assets recognised and
measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past
events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the
future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”); and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the end of the reporting
period.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at the
end of each reporting period. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life of the
financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group has
assessed its historical credit loss experience and external
indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the ECL rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for deposits
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood of risk of
default occurring since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial assets at
the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXZ:HBEHBEw@
POL|C|ES (continued)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets and contract
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets and contract

2. EREHHEME@

2.7 tRMEERSGHEERE@M

assets (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions, or
technological environment that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations; and
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—  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - EBAREEENERNTEHRA
operating results of the debtor. 2k -
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, e BTl 2 AR - REER

the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the
borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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assets (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost are set out in note 31.4.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

2.9 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in
the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.7 and are
reclassified to trade receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAESTEHEHME@m)
POL|C|ES (continued)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets and contract
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the
time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use.
The Group assess whether it has the right to
direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is
used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a

lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made
up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease, and
any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership
at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use for impairment when such indicator
exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXEFHBEHME@
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a

210 A& @)
(a) HEETERAEFHESFRH

lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee (continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will
be reduced for lease payments made and increased
for interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured
to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities whenever:

e there are changes in lease term or in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments changes due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a
lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee (continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less from commencement date and

2. EREFTHEME@
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do not contain a purchase option. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.

(b) The Group as a lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either

operating or finance leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as

an operating lease if it does not.

The Group also earns rental income from operating
leases of its plant and machinery. Rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of

the lease.

2.11Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to

settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEHMEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.11Provisions and contingent liabilities

LN BERIAEE @

(continued)

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is recognised at the amount of consideration of shares
issued, after deducting any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

2.13Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the contracts for the
construction services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IE RN E

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

nV-F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.13Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services
to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts are recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, i.e. the costs incurred
up to date compared with the total budgeted costs, which
depict the Group's performance towards satisfying the
performance obligation.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs
and margins for scope of works not included in the
original construction contract. Claims are accounted for
as variable consideration and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &% —F — —# = H=+—HIF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.13 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.13 R TR ()

Construction contracts (continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, a provision is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 37.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of retention
period, are classified as contract assets. The relevant
amount of contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
when the retention period expires.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income

Accounting policies for rental income are set out in note
2.10.

2.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “other income and gains” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAS:HBEME@m)
POL|C|ES (continued)
2.15Impairment of non-financial assets (other

L5 FTHMEERE(TREGNE

102

than contract assets)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
the Company’s investment in a subsidiary are subject
to impairment testing. They are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

The impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets
in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits 2.16 EEEF

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group's obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of independent trustees. The
Group contributes monthly at the lower of (i) HK$1,500;
or (i) 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees,
which contribution is matched by employees. The
Group's contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. Accordingly there
were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the MPF
Scheme.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Accounting for income taxes 2.18 Fﬁ SHNETEE

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in
profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting
profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEHMEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.18 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

218 FIEH N EFTEE @)

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average tax rates that are expected to
apply to the taxable income of the periods in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (i) when the existing temporary differences
will reverse and (i) the amount of future taxable profit in
those years. The estimate of future taxable profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

—  reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT I SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEEHEw@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker for their decisions about resources

2 19 /'\ul}*ﬁd:

AEERBERRNTIELERRER
HRAR 1% F L AN 52 B SR A5 AR B BD 0 B
ﬁffﬁﬁ@ﬂf’ﬁﬁi)&%&@%ﬁi%#ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁ

DERBENABHA B EREELE D

allocation to the Group's business components and for BRERDEER -
their review of the performance of those components.
2.20 Related parties 2.20BAER

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, M BREmS e J«A—H %

a party is considered to be related to the Group if: BA TR R ERE B fE

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ RATBRBFTEUTEENAT
person’s family and if that person: ZATHERREKE -
(i)  has control or joint control over of the Group; (i) BB AR L EE

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i)

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel (iii)
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

Tl
HAEEEEARE %

RAEESAREER QRN
TREHEEKE -

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) ZALTREBERS AT EMRE

conditions applies: "

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEERMAEBRLER—%E
same group; /3= NG

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) ZERBAHEMER(NAZ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%lﬁ% /N TEI’J
a member of a group of which the other entity is ERAIRAEERE) S
a member); NCIEIREN o

(iiiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEBERASERBR-—F=
the same third party; FHEERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity (ivy —EAERBAEE=FEEN
and the other entity is an associate of the third aEbE ME—BEEBR/X
entity; F=FERNEE AT

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZRERBASBENAKRSE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or FHENERAEENER
an entity related to the Group; S HBERERAIETE

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.20 Related parties (continued) 220 BAEF (&)
(b)  (continued) (b)y (#&)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZERH—BRE@IEHHA
person identified in (a); Tl kRIS

(viiy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viiy R@)IEHAMATHZERE
influence over the entity or is a member of the g8 ?%TZ% Ea(%
key management personnel of the entity (or of ZEEN 7 ) E’J 2E
a parent of the entity); and EEJEW,E\ ;

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZERENZEREMEEEN
which it is a party, provides key management EAKE R RN EESE
personnel services to the Group or to the parent REENHAGHREEEE
of the Group. BABRT

Close family members of an individual are those family BRI AT ERREKEEEZER
members who may be expected to influence, or be R SR TEH Al & E iz E B A T3 X%
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the BRI AT ERNKIEKE °

entity.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. AT RKEBITEBUMBERE

HKFRSs 28
(i) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for (i) R=ZBE-—FHA—HHZE
annual periods beginning on or after FEFEHBERZEEITE
1 April 2021 B KR EZER
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first MAEE  AREEBFREALUTEHES
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the BETRAGRMZ EIETEAMB
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations and WERER - AHAREEEERN_-F
effective for the Group's consolidated financial statements Z—FMA—-BRKRZFEHBRER
for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2021: BARE TSR B AR
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BRUBRERA  FIEEEYNE-
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Phase 2 FO% - BEEH  FBER
and HKFRS 16 ERIE39%: - B
BinE s
%’751‘? BT
WEERFL5E R
%5 B TSR
F165E(BFTA)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions ?ﬁéﬁﬂ%ﬁi/ﬁﬁw T —F A=TH#%
beyond 30 June 2021 1655 (E5TA) EACOVID- 1918
SER
Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the BR X FTatE SN - RS ET BB
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the GRS AR S B E AT R H
results and financial position of the Group for the current M HEZERMBRANRERE R 2R
and prior periods have been prepared and presented. A EERFLE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F = H=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. HAHIIRKEBITEBUMEHRE
HKFRSS (continued) EE\U(%E)

() Amended HKFRSs that are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after
1 ApriI 2021 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2” (“Phase 2
Amendments”)

The Phase 2 Amendments relate to changes in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirements and the related disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
("HKFRS 7").

As at 1 April 2021, the Group had a secured bank loan,
the interests of which are indexed to benchmark rates
that will or may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The following table shows the total amount of
this outstanding secured bank loan at 31 March 2022.
The amount is shown at its carrying balance.

Financial liabilities EREE
Secured bank loan linked to USD LIBOR

() R=ZF-_—FHA—-BHzR&

HAREEPEAERZEEITE
B R 5 ZE R @)
BB FEEREIS - &
EFEAE395%  EEHER
HRERETY EEHBREE
BIFEAGREBHEREERFE
1655 FIREEHZE - E—E |
(15573 ) ([ B =B RRIFETH )

F MBI R EERE SIS
WMEEAFIHREMTE : WEFHE
([BBMBRELERFTSE ) EFBE
MFIREERSE  BFEEHHRSFRE
FEAEERTE  SemEE - 2/
BEMIEEEZANRERNETE
HAEEREN -

RZZE-_—FWA—B8 A&EEEK
PERITER - EF B Hige kg e
R R B AE DR B 2 B ) B E R R A
89 TREBTZAEECHERRITE
RR-EBE-—E=A=1+—Hw#E
% o BRASHENEEARER

ST RBURTTRIZE YT B H S8 2 K47
RITEN

2,987

The Phase 2 Amendments have had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as the above relevant
loan has not been transitioned to the relevant replacement
rates during the year. The Group will apply the practical
expedient in relation to the changes in contractual cash
flows resulting from the Phase 2 Amendments for its loan
measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures are
required by HKFRS 7.

F_ERETAHEAM B RRILE
FE ARBEBRIRBHEKAEZ
ERHE BRI ARSI BME KR
SREZPRMATEEE - BA
PSR EERNETIRRERIELRIMK

=
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS RIS IR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated

—t—/\J (fE

BRANHE RAEE

A BB ERE

(i) EEMEERERNEERMHE

HE

R %

228
SRAMBRRERETRA

financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have

Hi - BT R EEMBRE
ERIEE TR ERARLER - BRHARE

not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Insurance Contracts and related
amendments?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property; Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020'

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

g Effective date not yet determined

4 Effective for business combinations/common control
combination for which the acquisition date/combination
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

REERFRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F = H=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. HAHIIRKEBITEBUMEHRE
HKFRSS (continued) 2%15\”(%)
(i) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (i) EEMENRERNEBTB

110

(continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group’s
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of
significant accounting policies in its financial statements.
The amendments also provide some guidance on how
material policy information are being identified and
provide some examples of when accounting policy
information is likely to be material.

In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice Statement
2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide entities
with non-mandatory guidance on how to make materiality
judgements when preparing their general purpose
financial statements in accordance with HKFRS. HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised to provide
guidance and examples on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and are applied prospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. Except for the disclosures of accounting
policies in note 2 to consolidated financial statements
may need to be revised to cope with the above changes,
the directors expect that the amendments have no other
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. HAHITIRLZEBITIEEBHMBRE
HKFRSS (continued) —r—nJ(F
(i) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (i) EEMEHNRERNERBTH

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of
Accounting Estimates”

The amendments clarify how entities should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates by introducing a definition for accounting
estimates, which is now defined as “monetary amounts in
the financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”.

Besides, the amendments also clarify the relationship
between accounting policies and accounting estimates
by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Accounting estimates typically involve the use
of judgements or assumptions based on latest available
reliable information. A change in accounting estimate that
results from new information or new development is not
correction of an error. Therefore, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technique used to develop
an accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior
period errors. In addition, two illustrative examples are
added to illustrate how to apply the new definition of
accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and are applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The directors
expect that the amendments have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EEE:H{hsT R &

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are st R A E = T EET S - WERER
based on historical experience and other factors, including KERMEMEAZR - BIEHEEEBERL TR
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable REBHARREHIEE o

under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimation uncertainty 4.1 A TFRERE

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets within the scope of ECL
under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to
ECL (including trade receivables, contract assets and
other financial assets) based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period as set out in note 2.7. As at 31 March
2022, the net carrying amount of trade receivables and
contract assets amounted to HK$22,257,000 (2021:
HK$5,936,000) (net of ECL allowance of HK$743,000
(2021: HK$78,000)) and HK$171,938,000 (2021:
HK$120,315,000) (net of ECL allowance of HK$9,134,000
(2021: HK$2,158,000)) respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and other items within the scope of
ECL under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.

AEEE KRR G RERR - it
B FrfEM A ELBEHN
:‘5: REBRAAR - TXAAEEE kR
ARESU T —EYBRFEEERR
1§E’JEEETELEZEKJT% g
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K 78 B {5 B B 1B 159,134,000 78 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EES L5t R HE @
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements

4.2 EXSTHER

Revenue recognition for construction
contracts

As explained in note 2.13, the Group recognises
construction revenue under construction contracts by
reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the end of the reporting period. This is
measured using input method based on the costs incurred
up to the end of the reporting period and budgeted costs
which depict the Group’s performance towards satisfying
the performance obligation. Significant estimates and
judgements are required in determining the accuracy of
the budgets, the progress towards completion of the
services, scope of deliveries and services required, the
extent of the costs incurred and forecasts in relation to
costs to complete. In making the above estimation, the
Group conducts periodic review on the budgets and make
reference to past experience and work of contractors.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
5.1 Segment information

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified that the Group
has only one reportable operating segment, which the
Group engages in contract work as a subcontractor.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers
No geographical information is presented as all of
the Group’s revenue from external customers was
derived from customers located in Hong Kong during
the year.

(b) Non-current assets
No geographical information is presented as all of

the Group’s non-current assets were located in Hong
Kong as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

BREAIH) W 22 BT

HANHTEE2.13F3 - AEEE2ER
BERRTEBITRORHNERR
RS KA TR S S - )
ERE ERBEERTHRELED
AR SBAREEITROEHHE
HWBERNBEXAE - REERE
RV ERENE - ERIRISREE - PARH
RN ERFHE - EERRARE R
BRATRRANTERE  SRETE
NGt RFE - FEED DT
rEESHREETESRNY X2
EAEENBELRNTIE-

5. H&ﬁé&““ﬂﬁﬂ

1 ZEEHR

ZAYN Tiﬂﬁﬁ%(ﬂﬂi%?&%ﬁ% RA)

ERAIEAREEER —ER 2HREE
DEE - BIAKEERD &Fﬁ?ﬁé%A%"]
T3z - At - WEZSIDEBER -

1 R

(a) REIEBEF Kz
HRAFEASERMBINIRF
WHRBUNRBEBHRS « I
#7 2 HI i &R o

(b) ¥AEBEE
RZBE_—F=ZA=+—HUK
T —F=A=1t—H A&
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —# = H=+—HIL F/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
5.1 Segment information (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue for each reporting
period during the year is set out below:

Customer A EEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C BEC
Customer D EFD

Wiz & 2 EBE R @)

5.1 2 EPER @0
EHETEEZEFEHR
RAEE @ REMAEEZREHK
=10% A EREEBEREFR WSS
FIEAR

2022 2021
—EC-CHE —E-_—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
N/ATE A * 133,294
N/ATE A * 156,250
352,291 85,288
80,175 N/ATNE R *

* Less than 10% of the Group's revenue.

The revenue from the above major customers was all
derived from the construction work.

5.2 Revenue

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:

* AAEERETREI0% ©
FiiFERFHREIGRBEETIE -

5.2 Wz

REEZ ETBEBHENEREPBR
FHIEET ©

AREERFRER Wi T

2022 2021
—EC-CF —T-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Revenue from contracts with BEEAHWE
customers

Provision of construction services — $R{LEEEARTS

548,839 481,710

~

||
[ [}
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W&z K2 EER @

(continued)

5.2 Revenue (continued) 5.2 WEs @)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BB BREEABISHBEERANE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 is as follows: PEARE=SFAT -

2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THET

Type of construction service FriR it SEAR S RO A

provided

Residential x= 420,645 323,689

Non-residential EEE 128,194 158,021
Total B 548,839 481,710
Type of customer EFER

From private sector Rl 418,924 398,759

From public sector NEFR7 129,915 82,951
Total b 548,839 481,710

Timing of revenue recognition U5 #E52A RS

Services transferred over time BERF R M AR TS 548,839 481,710
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TR AR AR S SRR ET AR
recognised in current reporting period that were included HHYENEERE L BFERBETH
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting BAZRBHEANWR S

period and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in previous periods:

2022 2021
—E-C_F —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue recognised that was ARG BYIE B ED
included in contract liabilities BRI
at the beginning of the reporting
period
Construction services AR 28 176

2021/22 FERE o EHIEBERABRAT 115
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.2 Revenue (continued)
Performance obligations
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within
15 to 60 days (2021: within 14 to 60 days) from the date
of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained
by customers until the end of the retention period as the
Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional
on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers
over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

The contract period varies from within 1 year to
approximately 3 years. The transaction price allocated to
the remaining unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance
obligations as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Amounts expected to be

TR AT s P RERR A

5. WERkDHER @)

5.2 WEs @)

B EF

BAHETN —BRERERREREmE
o EERFAEAEE15260H
N(ZZE=——%F : 142608 R )3 -
RPN 55 B JE B i 4R 5 SR A B I BRUAR
REFPEAKFIEEN—BRER A
REEENHREEME  WEF SR
B—ELONNREERBHERA
_IJ: °

BHEN T —FE2HN=FT%E - N =
T FRZFE-—F=HA=1+—H
DREBR T REBITHIDERITH
BHEENRSERWT :

2022
—g-=

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHIT

HK$°000
TRT

recognised as revenue W58 -

Within one year —FRN 213,840 382,900

More than one year HiE—F - 174,207
213,840 557,107

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate
to construction services, of which the performance
obligations are to be satisfied within approximately three
years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated

DREHRTROBEECGERR —FRHE
Rrla) 2 RS ESEEFERBE
W EBRNBEEHRO=FAET -
DEEHRTEONEEZAERMRS
EBLBEE BN —FARRB LK -
EXFEESBRY T BREXDIR G

to the remaining performance obligations are expected to AERE -
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.
KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HMWARWKER

2022 AOVA
—E-= —E_—F
HK$'000

FHT

HK$"000
THET

Other income and gains Hl A R Wzt
Rental income from leasing of machinery F&#HAIHE & WA - 313
Government grants from Employment R B (Rt ZE5H EIH BT BN (FisEa)

Support Scheme (Note a) - 1,548
Government grants from Construction R BEEEAIF REIEES ([#E

Innovation and Technology Fund ¥ARES ) RBUT BN (FisEb)

("CITF"”) (Note b) 282 _
Gain on disposal of property, plantand &%  BE M &N KRS F5E

equipment, net - 1,170
One-off miscellaneous works —RMEFIB TR 1,248 1,508
Others Hih 8 30

1,538 4,569

Notes: BREE -
(@) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received (@) BE-E-_—HF=A=t+—HIEE K

funding support amounting to HK$1,548,000 from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund,
set up by the Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the
funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain
their employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group received
funding support amounting to HK$282,000 from CITF, set up
by the Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is
to support the enterprises and practitioners of the construction
industry to wider adoption of innovative constructive methods
and new technologies in the construction industry with a view
to promoting productivity, uplifting built quality, improving site
safety and enhancing environmental performance.

(b)

EEEEBRTRINBENEESET
RELEETEES E B S 551,548,000
TL o ZEEN AT ERETBEIIE -
LAMRBRAIRE S B HES  REHBIE
o AEEREHHEARATEEE - W
FIEERFBEARNIHMEEH S -

BE-_E-_—_F=A=+—HILEE &
SEEEBBNRLNEEFXARESE
BREB S 5 A282,000/ T ° % &8N A
MATEREEENLEREEABRESR
¥R EREZHEARIFMEER AR
it DMREEED - REEEMRYE - K=
Ti & RIRRIRBAN
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

7.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCE COSTS

Interest charges on bank loans and

RITERIES MBS

BB R A

2022 AOVA
—E-= —E_—F
HK$'000

FHIT

HK$"000
TR

overdrafts 495 256
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBEVBZH 46 33
541 289

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BIfHIR — &8

Current tax — Hong Kong

FrigBiBx

2022 2021
—E-—F

—E-—F
HK$'000
TAT

HK$°000
TRT

Current year REE 1,998 8,223
Over provision in respect of prior years — #B{E F /& BREEHE 7) =
Deferred tax (note 24) RIERIE (Pff7E24) 2,751 656
Total income tax expense RSBz 4858 4,742 8,879

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 March 2022 is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
qualifying entities are taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above
HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 March
2021.

B 2N &= B — R Y B 2 B8 A 15 7 M AR
MAEERERIN BE_FT__F=A
=t HLEFE  FENSHEERFER
HETERTEMM165%TE(ZFT - —
F:165%) REMESHMEF - &F
& & §8 52,000,000 7T /4 1|42 8.25% #) ¢
KB > 2,000,000 TTIA £ 85 ) Bll #2
16.5% T XEH - ZHMBRARNEFET
SHBEREE_T-_—F=A=+—H
LEEFE AT ERRTUS FAY16.5% 1 H ©
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rate is as follow:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I IRaRIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

Fr88iBe @
RERRRAENEHA T Bt uF

HERF ¢

2022 PAOYA

—E—_— —E_—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Profit before income tax FRPTIS T A& 28,261 40,013
Tax at statutory tax rate at 16.5% BEEREI65%(ZTE=—F :

(2021: 16.5%) 16.5% )5t E 2 Fi1A 4,663 6,602
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEFRRN G 2 RIS E (72) (255)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFEFE S 2 A5 R/ &2 323 2,532
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates  F/S5 R 4% il 2 T 75 7 22

regime (165) -
Over provision in respect of prior years  3B{EF/EREEEE ) =
Income tax expense BB 4,742 8,879
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFFBHATER
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BR BT1S B ADE A T4 Bk (GTA) AT &
TEIRERL -

2022
e

—

Notes HK$’'000
Bo5E FEx

Depreciation included in cost of sales: T ASHERAHITE :

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

— Owned assets —BRBE 14 12,915 8,202
— Right-of-use assets —REEE 15 108 267
Depreciation included in administrative 5t ATTERFI S AU E -
expenses:
— Owned assets —BEEE 14 817 5
— Right-of-use assets —RESE 15 666 403
Lease charges on short term leases CHHENHEER 11,803 3,665
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERAALZ(TBRIEE
directors’ remuneration): E=HM)
— Wages, salaries, allowances and —T& - & 2K
benefits in kind BN 51,966 52,030
— Pension scheme contributions —iRIRET B
(note a) (FfizEa) 1,629 1,618
53,595 53,648
Auditor’s remuneration 2 2R A 357 B 950 1,080
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R&ER
plant and equipment, net E518,(Uezs ) F 58 2,042 (1,170)
Note: F5E
(@ As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions @ MZZEZZF=A=+—8H FAEEITE
under the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to RIEREEE T AMEARSERURIERE
reduce the existing levels of contributions (2021: Nil). HEIOK TR ER(ZEZ—F : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2022 # %

10. DIVIDEND

11.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$23,519,000 (2021: HK$31,134,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
of 1,000,000,000 (2021: 764,384,000) on the assumption
that the Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue had been
completed on 1 April 2020.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

RS RIS IR RMEE

—EC CF A= —HIFE

10. RE
EEW AR ERAE-_E-—F=FA
St ArFEEEMHEARE (2T —
o E) o

1. BREZF

2021/22 EEHE o

EREABFNESBINERARAES A
JE {5 4 3% K1) 23,519,000 T (ZFE = —
£ 31 134000;%%)&E%§TTE@HMD
#E S ¥5 £71,000,000,0000% ( =& — — 4 :
764,384,00008) 5T H - WREHEBALARER
EETER - -_TFEMA—HK °

HRAEERHE T - —FR T~ —
FZA=+—RHIFEWESBTETH
BERR BUYERBEEMUEE_T
T ER-E-_—F=A=+—HIEFE
23N EREREF S EEL AR -

REBMIBEZERERLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —# = H=+—HIL F/Z

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERITETHAEEM

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments, disclosed RIE EMARR - BARRUERIFE383(1) 15Kk
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong REl(HBRESFZERRMNE2E - €5
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure REZTHASHMESHEENT :

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

Other emoluments

H oo

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
Directors’ and benefits related scheme

fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R B Rikg

EEHE REUEFN HETEA HE 23 Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT TR THT THAT TR

2022 —E_CE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung REHEE - 821 - 13 834
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling S 3 - 624 - 18 642
Independent non-executive BYEHTES:
directors:
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan ML 144 - - - 144
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest HIBREE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Tang Sher Kin B BEE 144 - - - 144
432 1,445 - 31 1,908
2021 i S
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung EBRRAE - 790 - 18 808
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling MERZL - 595 = 18 613
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan R AT 12 - - - 12
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest EREERAE 12 - - - 12
Mr. Tang Sher Kin olFan 12 - - - 12
36 1,385 - 36 1,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I IRaRIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

12. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung is also the chief executive officer of
the Company. His emoluments disclosed above included those
for services rendered by him in the capacity of chief executive
officer.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: Nil).

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included one (2021: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
aggregate emoluments payable to the remaining four (2021:
four) individuals during the year are as follows:

12.EERFETHAEHFMHN @

EEHAETAARRITRAR - EXH
B2z HFMB B RIATTRAAR &5 RH
AR5 2 7B

BHE-ZT-—FE=A=t+—HItFE K
S EBEE R A E B S /EAHE N
AZREE B 38 DA 18 1Y) 22D ok 1E 4 Bk Bk 43
B(ZE=—F:8)-

BE-_ZT-—_F=A=+—HItFE - #
EEEREXFAERETMMESOLEE(=
T )

13. BREHMA L 25

FR-ARESESFHNARALTEE—
H2(ZTFZ—F: —R)EF > FZFHR
BRI EX 25204 - FRENEETEA
—E-—F MR EANFMETRDNT -

2022 PAYA
—ECCHE —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Salaries and other emoluments e K H A B 3,297 3,179
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFT B IR 71 69
3,368 3,248
The emoluments fell within the following band: HNEATEHER -

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

Z£%1,000,000% 7T

4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

HE-_ZT-_—_F=A=+—HIFE &K
S BB A 5 = B B A I S A (A B
SIEAREMAREE RN INAE D RZE
HEABEBEE(CE_—F &) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERZ®E
Plant and Office Leasehold
machinery equipment improvements Total
BB R M WARE HEWELS #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 April 2020: R-EB-EFNA—A:
Cost B#N 56,608 43 = 56,651
Accumulated depreciation ZFHE (26,778) (26) = (26,804)
Net book amount RMEFE 29,830 17 = 29,847
For the year ended BECBR--F
31 March 2021 ZA=t-HLEHFE
Opening net book amount HRYIBRE B 29,830 17 = 29,847
Additions INE 15,893 - - 15,893
Disposals HE (110) - - (110)
Depreciation e (8,202) (5) - (8,207)
Closing net book amount AR AR RHE 37,411 12 - 37,423
At 31 March 2021 and RZB-_—F=A=+—H
1 April 2021: kZZTZ—FMWA—R:
Cost BN 68,486 43 - 68,529
Accumulated depreciation ZFHE (31,075) 31) = (31,106)
Net book amount RESE 37,411 12 = 37,423
For the year ended BE-E—_—&
31 March 2022 =ZRA=t—-HILEE
Opening net book amount HERE A 37411 12 - 37,423
Additions NE 33,962 6,620 673 41,255
Disposals e (2,042) - - (2,042)
Depreciation ne (12,915) (667) (150) (13,732)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 56,416 5,965 523 62,904
At 31 March 2022: R-BE-—F=A=1+—8:
Cost BEN 79,503 6,663 673 86,839
Accumulated depreciation ZFE (23,087) (698) (150) (23,935)
Closing net book amount HREEEE 56,416 5,965 523 62,904
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

15.RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 15 AR SERHEARE

LIABILITIES
The Group as a lessee TEBERABEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises, various REEHEAR RIS - KERERANERE
motor vehicles and machinery used in its operations. Leases AEREBHEESL - HAMEREE
of office properties and various motor vehicles generally have AEMHERTEE3R4AF (=T ——F
lease terms between 3 and 4 years (2021: between 2 and 4 2EAFE)AAER - MBS R T A121E
years). Machinery generally has lease terms of 12 months or AZERE - —RME ' AEETNEEAS
less. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and B LAsNE R RS HEE B E o
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHREESE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEERAFENEAREEENRE
and movements during the year are as follows: BEREEOT -
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
DS RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2020 RZZE_TFMHA—H 554 564 1,118
Depreciation nE (403) (267) (670)
At 31 March 2021 and R-ZT_—%F
1 April 2021 ZA=+—Ak
—T-_—FWmMA—H 151 297 448
Additions INE 1,686 - 1,686
Depreciation e (666) (108) (774)
At 31 March 2022 N-—E-_—F
=A=+—H 1,171 189 1,360

2021/22 FEHE o BRBIBERARQAE 125 %:
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —# = H=+—HIL F/Z

15.RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities:

15. FAREERHERE@

AEBERABA @)
(b) HEERE

TRETAKREHEREZHRTEN
2l ShE

2022 2021
—EC-CHE —E-_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Total minimum lease payments: HEEE LR :

Due within one year —F A H 591 345
Due in the second to fifth years FEFAFEEH 660 200
1,251 545

Future finance charges on lease HEABEZARARIBL L
liabilities (41) (20)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEZRE 1,210 525

2022
—E_F

2021
—T-—F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$°000
TR

Present value of minimum lease SEMAENFKIRE :
payments:
Due within one year —FREIH 561 333
Due in the second to fifth years FEFEAFEH 649 192
1,210 525
Less: Portion due within one year & : s ARBIAEE FTH9—F R
included under current EEAEL
liabilities (561) (333)
Portion due after one year included st AZERBIEEE TH—F1%&
under non-current liabilities E|EFEL S 649 192

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total cash
outflows for the leases are HK$12,587,000 (2021:
HK$4,309,000).

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

BE—_T-_—_F=A=1+—HIt&F
E - HER SR #E% 512,587,000
BT (ZZF=—4 1 4,309,000/67T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE

17.

Key management insurance contract

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

TEEEABRRAH

16. RAFEFTABRENEREE

2022 2021
—EC-CHE —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TRT THET

4,497 4,350

The key management insurance contract at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 was mandatorily classified as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

Note: As at 31 March 2022, the key management insurance contract

represented life insurance plans with investment elements
relating to one member of key management personnel of the
Group. The total sum insured is US$1,380,000 (approximately
HK$10,695,000) with an annual minimum guaranteed return of
2%. The key management insurance contract of HK$4,497,000
(2021: HK$4,350,000) has pledged to secure general bank
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 March 2022, if the Group withdrew from the
insurance contract, the accounts value, net of surrender
charges of US$103,000 (approximately HK$798,000) (2021:
US$106,000, approximately HK$819,000), would be refunded
to the Group. The amount of surrender charges decreased over
time and was no longer required from the 19th year of contract
conclusion onwards.

R-BE-_—F=A=t+—BR-ZE_—%F
ZAZTHHNEEZEEEABRBALN
AHBReRENEERTINEAS KFE
ME R DB AR AT EF ABENE
BEE -

iz : RZE-—F=A=+—H FEBEEA
BRBELIBAZRERETE - ERREE
BAREE—ZTEERAENREXRD -
#81R%8 41,380,000 7T (#910,695,0007%
L) FERRREEHRE2% - TEE
3B A B1RM A #94,497,0008 0 ( — T ——
F : 4,350,000/ ) B - UEFHRZ
T ER_E-_—FZA=F+—HETF
AEBZHTRITRE ©

R-ZE-—F=F=+—8  WEAEER
Z2RBEY  ARFPEECHKRERER
103,000 7T (#7798,000E T) (- T = —
£ 1 106,000 7T (4819,00078 7T ) ) 1% -
BIRETAEE - RREASEERHEE
B RA KRB E19OFRETHLT -

CONTRACT ASSETS 17. EHNEE
2022 2021
—E-= e —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Contract assets arising from BEANEENEGNEE
construction contracts (a) 152,223 86,153
Retention receivables BN TIZRES (b) 28,849 36,320
181,072 122,473
Less: ECL allowance B TBHE B RSB (0) (9.134) (2,158)
171,938 120,315

2021/22 FERE o EHIEBERABRAT 127 %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A SRR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contract assets consist of the Group’s rights to consideration
for works completed but unbilled amounts resulting from
construction contracts. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional which
was generally within one to three months. The increase in
contract assets in 2022 and 2021 was the result of the increase
in the provision of construction services.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—FRN

Within one year

17. EHNEE @
Wiz -

(a)

AHNEEBEASEREEANELEND
FEAE M ARRELRKERERNES - &
REENBRENK AEGEER(—RAE—
E=AR)BEZEHEWE - BHEER
—E-—ER T —EENARESE
BRASMRARIE N -

BHEERRE AR E k4 & /T8 Hi ks
AT :

2022
B —F

2021
T
HK$'000
T

HK$000
TR

152,223 86,153

Retention receivables withheld by contract customers arising
from the Group’s construction work are settled within a period
ranging from one year to two years after the completion of the
construction work and acceptance by customers, as stipulated in
the construction contracts.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for retention
receivables as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Within one year
More than one year

ANEFNENERTIRRESEEEA
EENRETE - RRERRES QT
PRRETRE T mEF R —Em
FRRE -

RS RRERTRRESHFEHEE R
RBERRIT

2021
== s

HK$'000
THEIT

3,113
25,736

6,218
30,102

28,849 36,320

2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2022, HK$6,976,000 (2021:
HK$2,158,000) was recognised as ECL allowance on contract
assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit policy with
customers are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The movement in the ECL allowance of contract assets is as

17. EHNEE @
WiSE : ()

()

HE_T_—_F=A=+—HLFE "
6,976,000/ 7T ( — & — —4F : 2,158,000/
THERBAENEENTBHREEEERSE -
AEFMETFNRFEAR R EEBRERE
RERA B TS RRMITE18 ©

follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Balance as at beginning of year FHEERR 2,158 -
ECL allowance recognised during the year A& < TBHIE BB B EUE 6,976 2,158
Balance as at end of year FRERSR 9,134 2,158

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a probability of default model to measure ECL. The provision
rates for the measurement of the ECL of the contract assets are
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets
and the trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The
provision rates of contract assets are based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

FiE B HE R OB R EALETRED
i G EEREEER - AEANEE
EHEERERNBERDENE 5 RBER
BEHMRBAEEER  THRAHEERE
SRBFAEEHRANTFER - 6H0E
ENBRBXRTDERELBURIEL - &R
WEMEER AR - At E RS T IES
R BE¥BRERNHESAHATSENEEE
EEH - E AR BRI E SR TRAR
BERAIFEER o

18. EZ EEWF1E

2022 2021

—E-CF —TE-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

Trade receivables H 5 EWGRIA 23,000 6,014
Less: ECL allowance B TEEEEEIERE (743) (78)
22,257 5,936

2021/22 EEHE o

EBHIEZRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Group consider that the fair values of trade
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one
year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are on credit.
The Group's credit periods with customers range from 15 to
60 days (2021: 14 to 60 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a policy
to manage its risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
reporting period, based on the progress payment certificate
date and net of ECL allowance, is as follows:

18. EZ EEWFE @)

AEEEER R BHER —FRKRDH
BHRMFENFERERASBYES
ARER  RESZEHEBRNEFIRRNE
HIHARR &S -

AEBEEFZRGEREEAEER
X - AEELTEFPHEESRNF15260
K(ZZBE-—F : 145260K) - KEES
SKERARIE HI R B R GRIE - WAl BBUR
BEIRER  BHERTHRSRERER
T AEBWESLEZRBKBELEHRIFTE
FEERRSIEMERRAYR - BEZE
WGRIBRET B ©

RRESR - EHEKFUEGIRESEER
B R RS ) BN EE M EE B BER MR
RO -

2022

—=——

—

HK$"000
TR

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
T

0-30 days 0ZE30K&

22,257 5,936

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

B HRUAEREEERREESNT

follows:

2022 AOVA
—E-— —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Balance as at beginning of year FHEEH 78 =

ECL allowance recognised during FANERCTEREER
the year gt 665 78
Balance as at end of year FREH 743 78

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a probability of default model to measure ECL. The
provision rates are based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

BiE B HRERENBEREETRESD
- Ut ERBEEER - BEXTIER
L BURIEL - KRB EENBE -
FERRRARMEER E¥RERR
wEBRASHERBESER - EATRMT
BRI B TRR R IE R AT SEEHY -

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 19. BN RERRE

2022 AOVA
—E-= —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Prepayments TETFIR - 11
Deposits Ee 295 6,536
295 6,547
Less: Non-current portion W FERNERER (232) =
63 6,547

Prepayments and deposits mainly represent rental deposits,
utility deposits and other deposits. The expected credit losses
are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference
to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit
loss rate for the Group’s financial assets included in deposits is
minimal.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the ECL
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances RE RIBTTEERR

BNRALRSETRERERE ARS
EREREMERE - AREE2EBEE
BrREBERBRX AL ENEES
1B BREEXEREE REELAEARR
B BARREEARATER 5T ARE A
SECREENTBHREEBREXTBMRTRE
3 o

FilgsgrnemEERR T EENOR
BENREENERFKEER  -R=2F
——ER-_T-_—F=ZA=+—H  FBH
EEBERERTHAMTRE -

20 RERREEEY

2022
e

—

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$"000
TET

42,646 107,649

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RITRSWRITEAFERA XL ZEH X
FHE o RITABRTF R T BB R D8 M
EERIFAVIRTT ©

2021/22 FERE o BEHIREERBRAT

/
Allléiiml



7= S

0

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A SRR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —# = H=+—HIL F/Z

21. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 2. EZRAREREBENIRRES
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Trade payables B SN RIA (a 12,420 18,478
Retention payables e TIR2IRE (b) 10,107 4,705
22,527 23,183
Notes: P5E
(@) An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice (@ REREHR BEFENRBEREEH
date, at the end of each reporting period, is as follows: EAEH B BRER DA AT -
2022 AOVA
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHBxT
0-30 days 0&30K 12,420 18,478
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BESEMNFBETHE  BER—EARE
settled within one month. o
(b) Retention payables held by the Group arose from the Group's (b) AEBEEFEENENIERESELEBAS
construction works and are normally settled to subcontractors BHELETEE  BEEIBANRERD
within a period ranging from one year to two years after the BETEKANIRE—ZEMENESBH
completion of the contract work by the subcontractors, as WEE o

stipulated in the subcontracting contracts.

\ 132 KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I IRaRIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

22. Bt BERA R HMEMNRKIE

2022 2021

—E—— B —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Accruals fEsrE A 5,296 3,791

Contract liabilities arising from BERBEENSHNBRE

construction services (a) 3,022 28

Provision for reinstatement BIRE(EEE (b) 263 92

8,581 3,911

Less: Non-current portion & IEmENEE D (263) =

Current portion mEEl s 8,318 3,911
Notes: P &E

(a)

(b)

The excess of cumulative billings for construction work over the
cumulative work revenue recognised in profit or loss is recognised
as contract liabilities. The increase in contract liabilities as at 31
March 2022 was the result of the increase in the receipts from
customers near the end of the year.

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by the
Group's management with reference to quoted prices and/or
other available information. The assumptions and estimates are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised as appropriate.

(a)

(b)

BETREMNZAREBBNEET PIHER
MR TRKRGEHA DERREHNEE -
R-ZBE-_—F=A=+—HBHNAEHNARGE
I075 e P BT A SRR P B B iR 3 0 A
B o

REAEBETINABAEERBGER X
SEARBRERE R (ER)REE
R ENGITREREYE - BEREE
RAREBEDIREBEANEBEEEESERE
&/ REMMETBERTES T RE &M
mfdat - AABRREAERFEEER
A RIEFT(AEE) -

l

2021/22 FESRE o EHIEBERERAAT 133 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

23. SECURED BANK LOANS 23. BIRHERITER

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s bank loans were N-_E - —_FR-_E-_—F=H=+—
repayable as follows: H - AEBZRITEFEBEWT -

Carrying amount repayable (Note) AEEREE )
Within one year —FR 20,040 14,861
In the second year FF 531 521
In the third to fifth year EZERHF 1,651 1,621
After the fifth year RF1E 284 845
Total carrying amount BEREE 22,506 17,848

Less: Ve

— Amount due within one year ——FNENESE (20,040) (14,861)
Carrying amount shown under non- ERBBEET
current liabilities FrRBREE 2,466 2,987
Note: The amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates set Mzt : BAHESTERERHZEMEZTEEER
out in the loan agreements. HESH -
As at 31 March 2022, the Group's bank loans were secured by R-ZZ-_—F=ZA=+—H KEEZR

TERBATEEEREER :

legal charges over:

() unlimited corporate guarantees and a letter of () A2 aEREEERDZEREREER
undertaking given by the Company; and £ &

(i) the key management insurance contract with a carrying (i) BREEX)A4,497,000/8 T2 T EEIE
amount of approximately HK$4,497,000. ABRBEAT °

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's bank loans were secured by R-ZT-—F=ZA=+—H AEEZR
legal charges over: TEFBATEEERIEER

(i)  a property as owned by Ms. Kwan Chui Ling personally; () BERRZTEAHEERME

(i) the joint and several personal guarantees given by Mr. Yip (iy EEFLERBRRZITRHEMLR
Kwong Cheung and Ms. Kwan Chui Ling; and RABRIE AR - K

(i) BRMEEX)A4,350,000/8 T2 T EEIE
ABREREHL -

(iii) the key management insurance contract with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,350,000.

Except for a bank loan of approximately HK$2,987,000 (2021: FS e — B —®=ZA=+—

HK$3,498,000) which is denominated in United States dollars,
all other bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

BIEFE  BUAETHENRITERYD
2,987,000 7T (== = —4F : 3,498,000
TN - T EMIRTTE R AE TTEHE -

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BEREBBEREENFRANEBNT
year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRBEEE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

BRI EN

wERE

HK$'000

FBT

At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZFMA—H 3,716

Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) R ER(HES) 1,025

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H8K

—E-_—9mMA—H 4,741

Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) Rigz iR (MEE8) 2,965

At 31 March 2022 N-—E-_—_F=HF=+—H 7,706
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE

Expected

credit losses of
trade receivables
and contract assets

B2 ENFRER

BREEZ

BAHEEER

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZTFMA—H =

Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) Piem TR (KizEs) 369
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-BE-—F=A=1+—HE

—T-—FMmMA—H 369

Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) P8R (KMEE8) 214

At 31 March 2022 R-B-—H=ZH=+—8H 583

20212 EEHE o EWIBERARAD 135 %7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A SRR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EFERIE (m)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MEINME  ETEERBEEERBED
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of REREMBEARRRAEKE - LU TRAAEE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred B E M 5 AEERIBA RO

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R=-==—= NZE=—F

=A=t-H =1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RS BTSRRI FERR AY

in the consolidated statement of EIERIE B B 5
financial position 7,123 4,372
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. BA&
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATRAMSBBLMLT
follows:
Number of
shares of Share
issue capital
ERTROEE [} i
HK$'000
T
Authorised: EE
At 20 May 2020 (date of incorporation) R=Z=ZFH A =+H
with par value of HK$0.01 each (GRS B 87 &A%
(note a) F{E0.01/8 L (M7xa) 38,000,000 380

Increase of authorised share capital R—ZT=——F—-A+ANH
with par value of HK$0.01 each on EINEARFE{E0.018 T

19 February 2021 (note b) EERRA (MI7ED) 9,962,000,000 99,620
As at 31 March 2021 and 2022 N-B-_—FR-_EBE__F
=HA=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE :
Issue of a new share upon incorporation FAZNA &AL 18 31T
of the Company (note a) Rk (Fizta) 1 —*
Capitalisation issue of shares (note @) &AL EETIRD (Bistc) 749,999,999 7,500
Shares issued pursuant to the share RIEIR N ZEEE EHTRGD
offer (note d) (BftzEd) 250,000,000 2,500
As at 31 March 2021 and 2022 R-B-_—EF_E__F
=HA=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
* Less than a thousand Hong Kong dollars. * AM,000/8 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &% —

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

26.

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 20 May 2020 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares at par value of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the authority given by the resolution of the sole
shareholder of the Company on 19 February 2021, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01 each,
to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each, by the creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the shareholder of
the Company passed on 19 February 2021, the directors were
authorised to allot and issue a total of 749,999,999 shares
credited as fully paid at par to each of the holders of the
Company’s shares whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 19 February
2021 in proportion of their shareholdings by way of capitalisation
of the sum of HK$7,499,999.99 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 March 2021 and 250,000,000 ordinary shares
at par value of HK$0.01 each were issued on 11 March 2021 at
a subscription price of HK$0.54 per share. Among the proceeds
from the issue of new shares, before issuance expenses of
HK$22,355,000, amounting to HK$135,000,000, HK$2,500,000
and HK$132,500,000 were credited to issued share capital and
share premium of the Company, respectively.

RESERVES
The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration for
the share offer and capitalisation issue.

25.

26.

2021/22 EEHE o

RS RIS IR RMEE

—EC CF A= —HIFE

&N
BifsE

(@) ARAR-_Z-_ZTHERA_- JrEITFFHﬁX
S fI5A VA E R AN 380,000 7T © H A
38,000,0003% FAXEE0.017TTHIAR D ©

b) WREAARME—BRER-_ZT-_—F_H
THBRERE FRORE  BiBEEE
419,962,000,000 % B 1n » ANA RIAE R AR
£ 380,000 7T (% 438,000,000 % & f%
{B0.01% T2 B& 15 ) 3 2 100,000,000 7T
(% %10,000,000,000 % I EI{E0.0178 7T
ZRR) o

© WBEARAARRAR-_Z=_—F= H+n5
BENEMASE  ESEREBAA
Hﬁ@iﬁ?&fgﬁﬁlﬁiTE’]LE§§E7,499,999.995’§
TEAER  BEUARR_ZT_—F_A8
THELERMERBEZIARRRES
ME AR R G 1 E AR E R fIfd
B b 31T A $£749,999,999 % H2 H {E A BRI
Y AR KRR -

d) ARABRHR-ZT=—F=H+—A7EH

RERES IR —F_—F=F+—
B 217 8 AR E {£0.01 7% 7T £ 250,000,000
BE B - RBERSTREMNOS4ET -
BATR A D B0 PR FRIR A (HIBR BATR X
22,355,000 7T A1) #9 135,000,000/ 7T *
2,500,000 7T % 132,500,000 7T J3 5 5
FATAR AR BITRARBADEE

(A

REE

AEBRAFERBEFENORELE
HEENROREEHRET -

(a) Ri7EE
Bt s (B 48 B 31T A0 /9 m (B B2 i
BERBEMEBITREZENESR -

REBMIBEZERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT I SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

27.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing
and financing activities which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into one lease contract in which addition to right-of-
use asset amounting to HK$1,686,000 (2021: Nil), lease
liabilities amounting to HK$1,423,000 (2021: Nil) and
provision for reinstatement amounting to HK$263,000
(2021: Nil) were recognised at the lease commencement
date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the consideration
of HK$644,000 for the acquisition of an item of property,
plant and equipment was satisfied by a prepayment made
in the prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the consideration
of HK$1,260,000 for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment was satisfied by the proceed from a
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment with
a trade-in arrangement.

1. %8

RenERME

(a) EEBHFREXS

AEEETUATEERRRGARES
MEBRNIFRERENMEED -

HE-ZT-—f=A=1+—8HI*
B AEBTY—HHESEY  BF
NEE A EE,686,0008L(=Z
——F:F) HEEE1,423,000/%
TT(ZE2EZ—F : B) RIEBEREEERE
263,000/ (=2 =—%F : B)ERHE
SR B ERER o

HEe—_Z_-_—®=ZA=+—H81t#F
£ REME - BENRKEEEHR
{644,000 TTE A E—FEEHTE
NFERIEELR °

HE_Z-_—F=A=t+—HIHF
E - RIEME - BEKKBEEEHR
81,260,000/ 8 L E L A BRI L HER
LEME - BRE REEEEB SR
BER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

27.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27.4&&8HERERMT@
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

(b) MEFHRELENAELD

activities
Secured Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
HikH
RITER HEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
As at 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFFPMA—H 3,000 1,136 4,136
Cash flows: HERE .
Capital element of lease rentals B EHEARELD
paid = (611) 611)
Interest element of lease rentals 2N S & F 225D
paid = (33) (33)
Repayment of bank loans EEBIRITER (23,327) - (23,327)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRITER Z 5508 38,175 = 38,175
Non-cash: FRE :
Finance charges on lease liabilities A& & &M 2 H - 33 33
As at 31 March 2021 and N-ZZBE——F
1 April 2021 =A=+—HkK
—E-—-fFIH—H 17,848 525 18,373
Cash flows: HERE
Capital element of lease rentals BN LHEAREHD
paid - (738) (738)
Interest element of lease rentals 2SS EIF B ED
paid - (46) (46)
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (55,813) - (55,813)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRTTER Z 5508 60,471 - 60,471
Non-cash: IR :
Entering into new leases RIS ETARA) - 1,423 1,423
Finance charges on lease liabilities A& & &M 752 H - 46 46
As at 31 March 2022 N-TB——F
=HA=+—H 22,506 1,210 23,716
2021/22 FERE EHIZEZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

28.

29.

30.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EAEYE
Contracted, but not provided for: BERT4VB R

Property, plant and machinery =Y 296 =
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. HRAE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has a contingent liability in
relation to a fatal accident (the “Accident”) occurred at a
worksite, whereby a subcontractor’s worker allegedly sustained
fatal injury during the course of work. In October 2021, five
summonses (the “Summons”) were issued against Kwong
Luen Engineering Limited in relation to the Accident on various
offences under the Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance. Based on the current status of the legal proceedings
for the Summons and independent legal advice obtained,
the management of the Group considered it is premature to
conclude on whether the Group is probable to be liable for
offences alleged in the Summons, and therefore a contingent
liability exists.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration

The compensation of key management personnel of the
Group for the year represented the directors’ emoluments
as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Other transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did
not have any other transactions with related parties. In
the prior year, certain guarantees were given by Mr. Yip
Kwong Cheung and Ms. Kwan Chui Ling in favour of
the banks in respect of banking facilities granted to the
Group. Further details of the transactions are included in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

30.

RZZE-Z—_F=A=+—8  KNEEz—
TRAE T3 A M Bas B0 ([ B ) AR Sk
REE  ZENEH—ZHoBENIAR
BMEILEBEPESIHGEET RZZT
——%+H EBMIREERARRESZHE
IBCIRR R THE& LGOI ZIHFR T E
BHAREE([EE]) - REEERNEE
ERHRAEREESNBYEEZER @ K
SEEEERABANRASBERE A LA
HEEMRERNEITRE A RS EERE
REARNRE  AUKABERE -

RZZE-_—F=A=+—H AEEWE
EERFKAERE -

BAE T R 2

(a) TEEEASNHSE
RERNEEBIBERASNME I
R B R BRI 1 2B BT KO F
4o

(b) EEEB A 2 HMR S

REEZT-_—_F=H=1+—HBIF
& - AN BN 5 T A
HR5  RBEFE  EEFLEER
BRERZLIRBETAEB ZRITHE
NRIT A AER B TR - B
R WE— S F BRI E T ERE
BgaE23 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated by the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks
focus on securing the Group's short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long
term financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure
in respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

31.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and liabilities:

TREE

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost:

REHENATTENEREE ¢

1. MBEREER QA FEFE

AEERNEEEBBREDLETRELDY
REBERSBTAMAEMERER - 8
BREReEEMSER(SEMNXER) - =
ERR N REE SRR o

MHRREEREFTSHA - EEMBRE
REOBEERETREERERLTB™
SREBABRAEENEEFHRE R
B -EERASBMREEENARINE
K TEERHER

AEEES BT AN AN ERERREE
REF BB H AL EE( -

BMMMMERMEEREESE
BAMBHRREMFIEEGESR 54
REERBEIEEH

— Trade receivables — & S WA 22,257 5,936
— Deposits — %% 295 6,536
— Cash and cash equivalents —REMIREEEBY 42,646 107,649
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABENSHEE
— Key management insurance —FETEBABRBEEL
contract 4,497 4,350
69,695 124,471
Financial liabilities SHEEE
Financial liabilities measured at RESHAGTEN SR A E -
amortised cost:
— Trade and retention payables —BORNRERENIERES 22,527 23,183
— Accruals and other payables —FEETE A R EMENRIE 1,311 1,231
— Secured bank loans —HIEFIRITER 22,506 17,848
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 1,210 525
47,554 42,787

2021/22 FERE o EHIEBERABRAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I RAMEER ALEEw@
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.2Interest rate risk 312 FIZE@E R
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or FEREBETSANESEHERSFHT
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because BERFESIRESRELIR LB R R
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest 1 - AREBENNEREEEREER
rate risk arises primarily from secured bank loans and BIFRITERRBEEE - RFEF
lease liabilities. Bank loans and lease liabilities bearing EREEMEFEMNRTERREE
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash BEMRNSASEERRASREN X
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk [BUBg Fo A SBR[ o
respectively.
The exposure to interest rate risk for the Group’s bank INER B A SR AT A B M) 3R R B R PR A
balances is considered immaterial. WEBALTERX °
The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at RBEIRR - AEEERZERFE
the end of the reporting period were as follows: wn

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
R-ZEB--f£=H=+—H W_ZE-—4%=A=+—H
Effective Effective

interest IEESS
rate HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BERAIE FTET ERFIE T

Variable rate borrowings: J¥ENFIRMER :

— Secured bank loans —BEEITER 2.1% 12,961 1.9% 3,498

Fixed rate borrowings:  EIEFRME K :

— Secured bank loans —BIEFRITER 3.2% 9,545 3.0% 14,350
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 3.1% 1,210 3.9% 525
10,755 14,875
Total borrowings BN 23,716 18,373
Fixed rate borrowings & E M R E R L fE K
as percentage of total BMEB L
borrowings 45.3% 81.0%

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I REMEER ALEEw@

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.2 Interest rate risk (continued) 31.2 R = B ()

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group's profit after income tax for the year and equity to
a possible change in interest rates with effect from the
beginning of the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided
internally to key management personnel.

TRFARNKEF AR AEHREF
Ko HE o6 1 F A AE )R] BE N R B2 B Ay R
BE - APRES TN ABSER
EEABLREM -

2021
—E-—F
Increase/

(decrease) Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease) in profit (decrease)
or loss in equity or loss in equity

masgM, WM/ RaENS  mEEN

(R2) ORi) ORi)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

2022
ot St -
Increase/
(RD)
FTEx
Interest rate: Az
Increase by 50 basis NSO E 2
point 54
Decrease by 50 basis SO E RS
point (54)

FERx TET TET

54 15 15

(54) (15) (15)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the next twelve month period.

The calculations are based on a change in average
market interest rates for each period, and the financial
instruments held at the end of each reporting period that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables
are held constant. The sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements of the year ended 31
March 2021 has been prepared on the same basis.

Rl 2 BREHDERRRTHHI
RERABEET LR 2Y -
REREURKT AR BEHEL
BETRBB 2T -

AAETERE RRE TSN K&
8 URRNEREMRFEH N R
PHERESHNERMIATE  MHAA
HZ2HREATE BE_T_——
FZA=+—HLEFENERHBR
REBRE DI IRE —EERH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I RAMEER ALEEw@

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.3 Market price risk 31.3 M EERER

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to market price risk arising from
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (note 16)
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% change in the fair values of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group’s
equity, based on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

2022

ot St -

Increase/ Increase/

B ERER T B R IREEEKT R
BERIEHEBEEEMBRBAFSRZ
NEETRER CRER KT
FN_ZT-_—F=FA=+—H K&
EEESEARAFESAERZNS
BEEMEAZTBERRR(HE
16) °

TRIAEMERMAZERERTT
EMBERLT  REKREHRZEE
1B - NEBBRB A S A LA S E R
A FHEFABRENEREENR
FEESSNEFNHRE -

—E-—F

(Decrease) (Decrease)

Carrying

in profit Carrying in profit

amount  before tax amount before tax

BRBE AT R BRAEAT 4 7

REE  E/ (D) FEE  H/0hd)

HK$°000
TExT

Financial asset at FVTPL 1R A TAEET AB2ZEH
SREE 4,497

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FEx TR TR

225 4,350 218

31.4Credit risk NAEERE

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2022 and 2021 is the carrying
amount as disclosed in note 31.1.

EERBRESRITANYFIIRER
BERTANGKRBETEEEREAR
SEERMBERNEAR - AEEM
HENEERRIERENERATEE
BRETRAEFEHEERERER
) o

AEBBEEURN S _—_FR_FT=-—
F=ZA=+—BZEEATBARALERD
AR R A EERR AN 311
Fr#t ERBREIE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I EBREER AFETE @)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by
the credit control department. When considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to provide
proof as to their financial position. Where available
at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/
or reports on customers are obtained and used.
Customers who are not considered creditworthy are
required to pay in advance or on delivery of goods.
Payment record of customers is closely monitored. It
is not the Group's policy to request collateral from its
customers.

In addition, as set out in note 2.7, the Group
assesses ECL under HKFRS 9 on trade receivables
and contract assets based on simplified approach,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for impairment of all trade receivables
and contract assets. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profile for sales in the past
12 months as well as the corresponding historical
credit losses during that period. The historical rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors affecting the customer’s
ability to settle the amount outstanding. At the end
of each reporting period, the historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off (i.e. derecognised) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

NAEERE @)
() ESEUFBERESHEE

2021/22 EERE

AEENBRRSERERRITFN
HFETRH - BRTHEPHIE
EREEEN MR, E
TERAFGEREL - HRRBA
i@ - RIZ PRI sE & B SRR A
Bk AER - EREMAT @ &
SEERATFLHNINBEETR
R/ RBE o WARRERTER
BEPABNFTEIN RN E mbF
K - BN RGBT Y&
7 ARENBRTEREFRE
I o

LESN - GOPRE2. 7EAEL - RIBEE
PR ELAEIR - AEEIR
BEREETDA(ERFIMEES
FEWRIA K & B ERREE S
FEMBHRERRE) FEES
RRFERAGHEENTRRAEE
B8 - MHEERGENIBE2
{8 A $5 & B B S K% HfE
AERNBRBEEEEE - B
EBEREEHRBEARRTER
PHRERINRBEINE TR
AR MERBEERR - REMwE
HIR - BEENRTUAER - I
SRR SRR BEETT T ©

BHRUFARGHEERARE
8 HR A M 00 By g (D AR 1L T
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

On the above basis, the ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 was
determined as follows:

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has adopted
expected loss rate ranging from 0.01% to 3.23%
(2021: 0.02% to 2.34%) and 0.01% to 100%
(2021: 0.01% to 10.97%) on the gross carrying
amounts of the trade receivables and contract assets
amounted to HK$23,000,000 (2021: HK$6,014,000)
and HK$181,072,000 (2021: HK$122,473,000),
respectively. The ECL allowance of trade receivables
and contract assets as at 31 March 2022 are
HK$743,000 (2021: HK$78,000) and HK$9,134,000
(2021: HK$2,158,000), respectively.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
prepayment and deposits and cash and cash
equivalent. In order to minimise the credit risk of
prepayment and deposits, The management would
make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of prepayment and deposits
based on historical settlement records and past
experience and current external information and
adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information, including the default rate where
the relevant debtors operates. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In these
regards, the credit risk of other receivables are
considered to be low.

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

BEEREERERAFETE @

NAEERE @)
() EZENFEREHNEE

(i)

(&)

:*EEH_Jr HHE S EK
HIERGHNEERREEREE
EWT :

%_?__i A=+—H" B
DEIHE SRR FIBERENEE
A9 42 BR T {8 23,000,000 7T (=
T —F: 6014000/%71:)&
181,072,000 (=& = —

QZM3%M%E)R%OM%
£323% (T =—4 :0.02%
3234%)&001%jJOO%(_
T ——44F :0.01%E10.97%) &
%%%ET R-ZEBE-_—&£=RH
=+—HB BZEKFEKRE
DEEMNTEHEEFBERED T
B743,0008 (=T = —F ¢
78,0007 7T ) & 9,134,000 7% 7T
(ZZ=—% : 2,158,000/ 7T) °

HEBER AT ENE ML
BE
REHEKATENEMSRmEE
BREBNRERESARE
FEeEEY - %h%ﬁmﬁ&
ReMEERBREERE
E%ﬁ%@&%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ&w
B DA M IR B SINER B R I 48 A LA
RERBEE R REMHER (B
BHEEEBSALERENELD
X)) - ETERM A KRS R AU
O] 14 & B3 17 2L R SR @ Bl FEAA o
AEETETEMESIEIRRF - A
TEARERER BR 3 77 B LA UK (21361 BB (5
Hoghlbm s @ EMEUKFIED
EERBER AR -

RehReZEMNEERRBK
BR/RTIEX  RARHF I /K

B S B AR B R 15 AP
=EIRTT, BRI o

2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B I AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &% —F — —# = H=+—HIF/Z

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I EBREER AFETE @)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.4 Credit risk (continued) 14 EE R B o)
(iii) Credit risk concentration (i) FEE &k
Since the Group trades only with recognised and BN AEEEFEELSRAITEEER
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement FHE=FETRS  WHFE
for collateral. The Group had certain concentrations Hm  AREAFETEEES
of credit risk as the trade receivables in terms of the REfg - REAREWRASERA
following percentages were due from the Group's SN RAEE R AN R
largest external customer and the Group's five ZBSRBFIBEREEE S E
largest external customers out of the Group's total WHIaEE 2 A NBE D

trade receivables:

Due from the Group's largest FEW A& B & KN P

external customer - 88
Due from the Group's five largest ~ fEU AR S B 7 AINEBR

external customers 100 99

31.5 Liquidity risk 31.5 7 B [ B

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will méﬂliﬂ 2 DR R B RAE BT AL B
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its R ReH R — imﬁlﬁﬁ/ﬁféfﬂ’]/i\
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or mﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%@f&'ﬂ’]ﬂ 2B - NEE
another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity REEEZENRENBITERER
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its T?EFEJ/A&EEium%ﬁ@ﬁ@%xm
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow FERR  ASEMNBEEAREE
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an IKFR BB ERRE A EEE
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of B UEEEHRRATDHESHE -
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated rEEFREZEEERPERAERZ
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing BRAKBAEEBRRERARRE
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as NG A EEERERBELTE -
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day ReFRKFEGHEADAEEREL
business. Net cash requirements are compared to available BRAEEREREMTETEEE - k5D
borrowing facilities in order to determine headroom or BRI AEREEHRNERAE
any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available borrowing EEBTE °
facilities are expected to be sufficient over the lookout
period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I RAMEER ALEEw@
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.5 Liquidity risk (continued) 31.5 B M R B ()

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual TXBERREER-_ZE__FR_-F
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 Z—F=A=+—HBEBEFTES
March 2022 and 2021. When the creditor has a choice RBENBRTENFEHIN o WERE
of when the liability is settled, the liability is included on AFREZEEEENRRE 58
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be BERAEEEERKEENRTAH
required to pay. Where the settlement of the liability is AR - Mt EBEAESHESR 5%
in instalments, each instalment is allocated to the earliest BRBRAEEAREENXFHE
period in which the Group is committed to pay. NG

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the A& HEREREED
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities. RARBF S MEBIEL -

Ondemand  Over 1 year Total
or within  but within Over undiscounted Carrying
one year 5 years 5 years cash flow amount

BEXH BA1E AERRE

15/ B5%R HBiB5F hELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT TAT

As at 31 March 2022 R-IB-—&

=A=+-8
Trade and retention payables & 5 & (708 [ & +f

TERES 22,527 - - 22,527 22,527
Accrual and other payables — fEzTE I & At fE <t

A 1,311 - - 1311 1,311
Secured bank loans BREMRTER 20,212 2,286 286 22,784 22,506
Lease liabilities HEEE 591 660 - 1,251 1,210

44,641 2,946 286 47,873 47,554

As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB--&

=A=+-H
Trade and retention payables & 5 & 5008 KBNS

TiRRESR 23,183 - - 23,183 23,183
Accrual and other payables  fExFE B R E b B

A 1,231 - - 1,231 1,231
Secured bank loans BERRITER 14,965 2,286 858 18,109 17,848
Lease liabilities MERE 345 200 - 545 525

39,724 2,486 858 43,068 42,787

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial ARER BT R B R B R P
assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in ZRSHEENTEHRRETE - LH
particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that EHERSERRFHEER SHEAMT
readily generate cash. The Group’s existing cash resources BEE ASEREREERREM
and other liquid assets significantly exceed the cash mBNEERERAR S MEER -

outflow requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.6Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the observability and significance of
inputs to the measurements, as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities.

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.

—  Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s
financial instrument, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:

Financial asset at FVTPL (note 16)
(MizE16)
— As at 31 March 2022

— As at 31 March 2021

—-R-_E-_—_F=A=+—H
—-R-_E-—F=A=+—H

31. MBAEBRERER A FEFE@®
6 EMT A FENE

REREHBAR MR PR R FEFEN
TREENABANS/=EIFERE
o ZEBRERFTEMRAEABE
WA BRENBEEFENT

- F—E: HRABERRENER
M5 wE(CREAR) -

- FE:HREERBEMEEX
B ABRETERENELE
ENBAZIRZBAZUR(F —
EBREEHRERI)

- FZE:BEFREMNERNEX
BB AR

TREEXRBEEEMERANAY
BEREANERENE A FEFER
BEABENTEE B AZE -

AEEz M TA(ERAEAEDE
ATHEEEZ BT ARKRIN 2 REE
RAHEWT

Carrying
amount

SRE1E

Fair Value
AFE
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
TAT

BAFEFARSNEMEE

4,497
4,350

4,497
4,350

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments and deposits, trade and retention
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals and other
payables approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

EEEEHEEZREFE HER
BeEEY s ABRNRERREH
CREE  BEHERNFRANENTE
REE AR ERAREMENK
ENERMAEN A FEEAREEMN
o TERHRZETANIHER

O
W ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F - —#F = H=+—HIFEF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.6Fair value measurements of financial

1. B EREER AR EFTEm@®

6T AEZAFEFE@®

instruments (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of lease liabilities and borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
and were assessed to be approximate to their carrying
amounts. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
borrowings as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 was assessed
to be insignificant.

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss is based on the account value less surrender
charge, quoted by the vendor. The directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation
technique, which is recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related change in
fair value, which is recorded in profit or loss, is reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

AEBEMBEHPIAMBLEEERE - |8
AEETERTARAVEFAENRER
B - MHKEERAMGRENE
BRRBERE -RNEBEAH U5
MEASTERMTANBEZEHVETE
EETEANEEGARE - HEH
M REEZRAE - HEBE NG
RABEZZES@BFETMRE® -
IAVEFR BRI S R BA TS ER 4R o

TREENBBZAVEFABRE
AARERMR S (BANBRIEER
SN RIZTEAMBECEE ° fBEt A
FEERBATTERRR :

HEBBERERNAFENKRERSB
HOUER - EERB RSB TEEAD
TEEm B EEHARKE
SREFE  UHHAEEE®ENR
B AEER T _—_FR_F——
F=HA=T—HWNERTEBLRERE
FEBTERK °

DEREATEFABRBRZEREE
MW AFEDERKRFBERRRER
(RHERRE)FTE - EFHE - N
BERMEL 2 EFTAHEG AZE
FBIRORER) R A EZ B E ) (5
ABS)HRAE  ARAREERRZ
R&RAEEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I REMEER ALEEw@

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.6Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together
with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March
2022 and 2021:

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input

EXRT
HERT BEGAE

MN6EMI A AFEFE@

TR EMTARER-_FT_—
RZB-—F=RA=+—BZEXT
ABRE A EERTEEHREDNH

B g

Financial asset at FVTPL N/A Account values HK$5,295,000

BAFEFABRZ NiE R RFEE

(2021:
HK$5,169,000)

5,295,000 7T
(ZF=—%F:
5,169,000/ 7T)

Surrender charge HK$798,000

RIRER

(2021:
HK$819,000)

798,000/ 7T
(ZF=—%:
819,000/ 7T)

Sensitivity of
fair value to
the input
REEH
WAEZSRE

5% (2021: 5%)
increase/(decrease) in
account values would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value by HK$265,000
(2021: HK$259,000)

BREEELA
(~B&)5%
(ZZ=—%F :5%)
EERATELF
("NP%)265,0007 7T
(ZF=—F:
259,000/ 7T.)

5% (2021: 5%)
increase/(decrease)
in surrender charge
would result in
decrease/(increase)
in fair value by
HK$40,000 (2021:
HK$41,000)

RRBALA
(~B&)5%
(ZZ=—%F :5%)
BEBRAFETR
(_LEF)40,0007 7T
(ZZ=—%:
41,000/87T)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —F = —F = =+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I RAMEER ALEEw@
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.6Fair value measurements of financial N6eMIAZAFETE@
instruments (continued)
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TREMANSEESFHITA A TER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instrument: SER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E1R 28R B3 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET

Financial asset at FVTPL 3R AT(EET ABzE

KIS E E
—Asat 31 March 2022 —R_ZT_—4F
—A=1+—H - - 4,497 4,497
—Asat31March 2021 —R-ZT——4F
=A=+—H - - 4,350 4,350
The movement in fair value measurement within Level 3 HE_Z_—_FR-_ZF-_—F=H8
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is as follows: =1+—HIEFE @ F3IRANAFET
EEHIT -
HK$’000
FBT
At 1 April 2020 MRZZE_TFMA—H -
Purchase BE 5,414
Loss recognised in profit or loss MBS R EE (1,064)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-EBE-_—F=A=+—-HRK
—E-—fFMIH—H 4,350
Gain recognised in profit or loss RiEs R RIS 147
At 31 March 2022 R-E—_—_H#=A=+—H 4,497
During the year, there were no transfer of fair value FR- eREERERABES 1RES
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no 2 AT EFE AW EERE - F3
transfers out of Level 3 for both financial assets and BMEEH(ZT - —F ) o

financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F = —4# = H=+—HIFFZF

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the shareholder and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders or return capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021.

32. EARER

AEEEAEENTIZANRREAEE
REAIGELE  UARRIEHROR X4
RFREENEBAREERKA -

AEBEEBEEALRE  UTHEBEBLE
BIEHTARE - B XNABREARAERE - &
& B 7] B2 A B A1 AR B R A A AR B sk A iR 3R
REBER NEBE_Z-_—_€=A=+—
BR-—_ZE-_—F=A=+—HILFE &K
SEVTEHEEERANEDN - BERORRE
{EHER ) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 2 —F - —# = H=+—HIL F/Z

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. AA A BEMRRE
THE COMPANY

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-EBZ-_F NZE-—F

=BA=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHEIL
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEH B AR E —* —*
Current assets REEE
Due from a subsidiary JE W — B B A R F0I8 110,673 48,481
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 106 64,151
110,779 112,632
Current liability REBAE
Due to a shareholder FE— R R FTE —* —*
Net current assets REEEEE 110,779 112,632
Net assets REE 110,779 112,632
Equity R
Share capital &7 10,000 10,000
Reserves (note) et (P aE) 100,779 102,632
Total equity AR 110,779 112,632
& Less than HK$500. * {ER500787T
Yip Kwong Cheung Kwan Chui Ling
HEER BER
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
FTEFENTEEF HITEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F = —4F = =1—HIFF/E

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Balance at 20 May 2020 (date of

R-Z_TFRA=-+AHGE

MizE : ARRRFEOHMENT

Share
premium

RRE

HK$’'000

TR

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. AQ R BB R T @

Accumulated
losses
RitEE
HK$'000
THAT

Total
#st
HK$'000
FAT

incorporation) AL B 87) 2 &84k = = -
Capitalisation issue of shares B EITRR D (7,500) = (7,500)
New shares issued pursuant to the — MRIEAX (7 2 E 31 TEIAR
share offer 132,500 - 132,500
Share issue cost ARAD B A TR AR (22,355) - (22,355)
Loss and total comprehensive HiNEE L 2R 5
expense for the period = (13) (13)
Balance at 31 March 2021 and RZE——F=RA=+—HK
1 April 2021 T FNA-HZER 102,645 (13) 102,632
Loss and total comprehensive FNEEREERS A
expense for the year - (1,853) (1,853)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R=ZB-_—F=A=+—Hz
#EeR 102,645 (1,866) 100,779

As at 31 March 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company

amounting to HK$100,779,000 (2021: HK$102,632,000).

R-_EBE-_—_F=ZA=+—8 ' ARQRRZAH
K % 4 /5 100,779,000 8 7T ( = & = — 4 :
102,632,000/ 7T) ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
gy 2Tk

For the year ended 31 March
HE=A=t-BLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

—2-\& ZE-NEF ZTZTF T ZEZZ
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT TET THT TAT TRT

Revenue 3% 170,225 272,916 404,825 481,710 548,839
Cost of sales SHEKA (150,746) (239,692) (352,608) (420,887) (502,672)
Gross profit ESV | 19,479 33,224 52,217 60,823 46,167
Other income and gains H A Rlias 321 1,105 450 4,569 1,538
Administrative expenses TBREX (2,821) (4,021) (4,157) (7,523) (11,409)

Fair value gain/(oss) on a financial asset A E:F ABHHL E
at fair value through profit or loss BEZATERS/

(B18) - - - (1,064) 147

Expected credit losses on BHAERBEEER

contract assets = = - (2,158) (6,976)
Expected credit losses on B IRWHERAEEEE

trade receivables - - - (78) (665)
Finance costs REKA (164) (181) (195) (289) (541)
Listing expenses iili53 - = (1,935) (14,267) -
Profit before income tax RSB ADER 16,815 30,127 46,380 40,013 28,261
Income tax expenses FTEfiAx 2,774) (4,971) (7,972) (8,879) (4,742)

Profit and total comprehensive ~ A2 FHHE AL
income for the year FRRAK2EKRELEE
attributable to owners
of the Company 14,041 25,156 38,408 31,134 23,519

As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

“T-N& —ET-NF —F-_FF —ZT-_—-% CZBC-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEr T T TET

Assets and Liabilities EENRERE
Non-current assets FEneEE 20,362 26,316 31,795 42,221 68,993
Current assets MEBEE 40,635 65,862 83,246 240,447 241,074
Non-current liabilities FRBER 2,704 3,981 4,332 7,551 10,501
Current liabilities mEaE 20,035 24,783 29,887 50,516 51,446
Total equity ERanm 38,258 63,414 80,822 224,601 248,120

Note: The summary above does not form part of the audited financial ~ KI&E : Sl BE 20 MERA BRI TERKRA—ED ©
statements.
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